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Performance Retreads PT. SP
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* The tyre distribution business was discontinued at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2017. Please refer to Notes 4 and 24
to the financial statements for more details.
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CHAIRMAN’S

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, we present
to you the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”).

The Group’s revenue grew by 2% to $127.7 million in
FY2017 reflecting the higher contribution from commodities
trading, offset by lower tyre sales as the Tyre Distribution
Unit completed its asset sales on 29 December 2017
and discontinued business. Profit after tax decreased to
$0.4 million from $1.8 million in FY2016 as a result of the loss
incurred by the tyre distribution business.

The Group remains focused on developing its commodities
trading business, with continuing cost management and
productivity improvement in the coming year. The Group
will also explore investment opportunities to achieve the long
term goal of enhancing our shareholders’ value.

To our fellow directors, management and staff, | would like
to express my sincere appreciation for your dedication and
contributions.  To our treasured customers, suppliers and
business partners, | wish to thank you for your continuing
confidence and support to the Group. We look forward to
many more years of productive alliances and partnerships in
the future.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board of Directors, we
would like to register our heartfelt gratitude to you, our
shareholders, for your steadfast support over the years. We
strive to grow shareholder value in years to come.

PETER SUNG
Chairman

25 January 2018
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CEOQ’S OPERATIONS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
(“FY2017”), the Group reported higher revenue of
$127.7 million as compared to $125.6 million in
FY2016, mainly due to higher commodities trading
activities, while the tyre distribution business continued
to be affected by intense competition. The Group’s
profit after tax decreased from $1.8 million in FY2016 to
$0.4 million.

COMMODITIES TRADING UNIT

The Commodities Trading Unit primarily carries
out trading of rubber, coal, metals as well as other
commodities and products used by manufacturers in
the tyre, energy, metal and automotive industries in
Asia. The Unit also distributes consumer products such
as baby and adult diapers, baby wipes and feminine
napkins produced by established manufacturers in
China and Indonesia.

The Commodities Trading Unit recorded a 11% increase
in revenue of $121.1 million in FY2017, as compared
to $109.3 million in FY2016 primarily attributable to
higher trading volumes and revenue from coal and sale
of metals; while trading revenue from rubber, machinery
and consumer products were lower.

The Commodities Trading Unit will continue to forge
closer ties with its principals and customers to boost its
commodities trading activities.

TYRE DISTRIBUTION UNIT

The Tyre Distribution Unit distributed established tyre
brands, namely, GT Radial and Gajah Tunggal from
Indonesia; and GT Radial, Primewell, Runway and Giti
from China, in ASEAN countries, except for Indonesia,
the Philippines and Thailand. Its principal suppliers,
PT. Gajah Tunggal Tbk. and Giti Tire Pte. Ltd., were
the leading tyre manufacturers in ASEAN and China
respectively. As the distributor for these brands, the
Unit distributed a wide range of bias and radial tyres
for trucks, buses and passenger cars. The Unit also
provided tyre management services in Singapore and
offered a one-stop solution for both new and retread
tyres.

The Tyre Distribution Unit registered revenue of
$6.7 million in FY2017, as compared to $16.3 million
in FY2016. The Unit posted a net loss of $0.5 million
arising from lower revenue, partially offset by lower

operating overheads and expenses. The lower sales
performance this year reflected the completion of the
asset sales to interested persons on 29 December 2017
and the discontinuation of the tyre distribution business
as at 31 December 2017.

The Group will continue to focus on disciplined

management of costs and capital, while pursuing other
viable business opportunities.

BOEDIMAN GOZALI (ALIAS TONY WU)
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

25 January 2018
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CHAIRMAN
INDEPENDENT & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Bachelor of Arts degree with a First Class Honours in
Economics, University of Singapore

Date of appointment as Director: 28 January 2002
Date of last re-election as Director: 6 April 2017

BOARD COMMITTEE
Remuneration Committee (Member)

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
Nil
PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN

DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)
Calbert Pte. Ltd. (Chairman)

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Nil

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

e School teacher.

e Worked with Shell, Sime Darby and the Pilecon groups
of companies in Singapore and Malaysia in the corporate
planning, marketing, sales and personnel functions.

e Singapore’s ambassador to the Philippines.

e Served as Minister of State in Singapore with
attachments to the Ministries of Foreign Affairs, Home
Affairs and National Development.

e Served as Member of the Singapore Parliament.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS
Nil

MANAGING DIRECTOR (“MD”) AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEOQ”)
NON-INDEPENDENT & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Diploma in Marketing, Institute of Marketing,
United Kingdom

Date of appointment as Director: 1 August 2010

Date of appointment as MD and CEO: 1 August 2010
Date of last re-election as Director: 27 April 2015
Proposed for re-election at the AGM on 17 April 2018

BOARD COMMITTEE

Nil

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
Nil

PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)

e Bestway Holdings Pte Ltd (Chairman)

e Bestway Properties Pte Ltd (Chairman)
e Bestway Investment Asia Pte. Ltd. (Chairman)

e Sanya Summer Mall Department Store Co. Ltd (Chairman)

e Sanya Summer Commercial Co. Ltd. (Chairman)

e Danzhou Summer Property Developments Co. Ltd.
(Chairman)

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Nil

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

e Chairman and Managing Director of several companies in
Bestway Group in Singapore from 1993 to August 2010.

e President Director and Commissioner of PT. Indonesia
Prima Property Thk, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange in Indonesia, from 2004 to 2010.

e Senior economist of The Economist Intelligence Unit (SEA)
Ltd in the United Kingdom and Singapore in the 1970s.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS

Mr Wu is the maternal uncle of Mr William Nursalim alias
William Liem, a Non-Executive Director of the Company. He
is also the maternal uncle of Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung, a
deemed substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue of
her interests in Nuri Holdings (S) Pte Ltd.

INDEPENDENT & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

e Bachelor of Science (Chemical Engineering) Degree with
First Class Honours, University of London

e Advanced Executive Management Program, Kellogg
Graduate School of Management, Northwestern University,
United States of America

e Singapore State Scholar/Colonial Welfare and
Development Scholar

e Fisenhower Fellow

Date of appointment as Director: 24 May 2001
Date of last re-election as Director: 6 April 2017

BOARD COMMITTEES

e Audit and Risk Committee (Chairman)
e Nominating Committee (Chairman)

e Remuneration Committee (Member)

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)

Nil

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS
Far East Orchard Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

e Held various senior positions in Singapore Petroleum
Company Limited (“SPC”) as head of corporate planning,
finance and accounting, supply and trading, and
marketing and distribution. Was President and CEOQ of
SPC from 1981 to 1996 and Board Director and Exco
Member from 1999 to 2009.

e |nvolved in the Asean Council on Petroleum.

e Board member of the Singapore Economic Development
Board.

e Member of the Government Economic Planning Committee.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS
Nil
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NON-INDEPENDENT &
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

e Bachelor of Accountancy, National University of Singapore
e Master of Business Administration, National University of
Singapore

Date of appointment as Director: 8 December 2005
Date of last re-election as Director: 27 April 2015
Proposed for re-election at the AGM on 17 April 2018

BOARD COMMITTEE
Audit and Risk Committee (Member)

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
Nil
PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)
e Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

(Chief Financial Officer)
e Singapore Heart Foundation (Director)

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Nil

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

* Finance and accounting management in various industries
covering countries in the Asia Pacific, Middle East and
the Caribbean.

e Regional Finance Director, Asia-Pacific of Equant Pte. Ltd.

e Group Finance Director of Berger International Ltd

MEMBERSHIP AND OTHERS
Fellow of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS
Nil

NON-INDEPENDENT &
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

e Bachelor of Science in Business, University of California
at Berkeley

o Master of Business Administration, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology

Date of appointment as Director: 7 March 2003
Date of last re-election as Director: 5 April 2016

BOARD COMMITTEE
Nominating Committee (Member)

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)

e Gul Technologies Singapore Pte. Ltd. (Director)

e Nuri Holdings (S) Pte Ltd (Director)

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Nil

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

e Corporate analyst at Lehman Brothers.

e General management of business development/projects
at GT Asia Pacific Holdings and Habitat Properties Pte Ltd.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS

Mr Liem is the nephew of Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu),
the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is also the brother of Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung,
a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue of
her interests in Nuri Holdings (S) Pte Ltd.

INDEPENDENT & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date of appointment as Director: 1 January 1999
Date of last re-election as Director: 5 April 2016

BOARD COMMITTEES

e Remuneration Committee (Chairman)
e Audit and Risk Committee (Member)
e Nominating Committee (Member)

PRESENT DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
e Japan Foods Holdings Ltd (listed on SGX-ST)

e Dynamic Colours Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

e Neo Group Limited (listed on SGX-ST)

e Nera Telecommunications Ltd (listed on SGX-ST)

PRESENT PRINCIPAL COMMITMENTS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES)

Nil

PAST DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

HELD OVER THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS
Nil

BACKGROUND AND WORKING EXPERIENCE

e Had previously been actively engaged in corporate
governance advocacy, consultancy and training work
under HIM Governance Private Limited, including, being
the regional adviser of Governance for Owners LLP.

e Volunteering at a number of other governance-related
associations.

e Qver 20 years of banking, public-accounting and senior
commercial experience.

MEMBERSHIP AND OTHERS:

e Member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants

e Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants

e Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors

e Chartered Director Fellow (C. Dir FloD) of the Institute of
Directors

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTORS, THE COMPANY
OR ITS 10% SHAREHOLDERS
Nil



RISK MANAGEMENT

SP Corporation Limited (the “Company”
or “SP Corp”) continues to explore
and develop opportunities to sustain
earnings and to drive long-term increase
in shareholders’ value. In doing so, we
are exposed to certain risks. Hence,
our ability to prevent, detect and
manage risks is crucial for an effective
governance and control of the business.

Our Enterprise Risk Management
(“ERM”) framework is designed
to be in line with ISO37000 - Risk
Management Principles and Guidelines
and the recommended practices
under Risk Governance Guidance for
Listed Boards issued by the Corporate
Governance Council on 10 May 2012.
It outlines the principles, process,
tools, risk categories and types, key
responsibilities, reporting requirements
and communication timelines within
SP Corp and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and intends to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group’s
objectives can be achieved and its
obligations to customers, shareholders,
employees and society can be met.

RISK MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES
At SP Corp, risk management is an
integrated process that supports
informed decision-making throughout
the Group.

Our integrated approach recognises
the need for clear, timely direction and
decision from the Board of Directors
(the “Board”), senior management
and our business unit management,
where appropriate. Risk management
is also embedded into the day-to-
day decision-making and operational
activities.

The top-down approach involves a
review of the external environment in
which we operate and the extent of
our risk appetite. The result from this
strategic risk management will guide the
actions that we will take in executing
our strategy. Key risk indicators have
been identified for each of our principal
risks and are used to monitor our
risk exposure. These key risks are
reviewed annually by the Audit and Risk

Committee (“ARC”) to ensure that the
activities of the business remain within
our risk appetite.

The bottom-up approach involves
identifying, managing and monitoring
risks at the operational level. Such
operational risk management is
embedded in our everyday operations.
Control of this process is through
maintenance of risk registers by all
business units. These risk registers
are aggregated and reviewed by
the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and
the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”),
with significant and emerging risks
escalated for the Board’s and the
ARC’s consideration as appropriate.
This process complements the top-
down view by helping us to identify
our principal risks and ensuring that
operational risks are fully considered in
determining the risk appetite and the
corresponding strategy of the business.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF RISK
GOVERNANCE AND OVERSIGHT
STRUCTURE

Under the ERM framework, the Board
has overall responsibility for assessing
and managing risks with a particular
focus on determining the nature and
extent of significant risks it is willing to
take in achieving its strategic objectives,
especially those that would threaten the
solvency or liquidity of the Company
and the Group. The ARC oversees
the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The CEO and the CFO are responsible
for implementing the Company’s
strategy, strengthening the Group’s
risk management culture, ensuring the
overall framework of risk management
is comprehensive and responsive to
changes in the business, and managing
the internal audit function. They regularly
review the completeness and accuracy
of risk assessments, risk reporting and
the adequacy of risk mitigation efforts.
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The CEO and the CFO, in turn, place
reliance on their business unit teams to
monitor and manage operational risks
on an ongoing basis, and to identify
emerging risks. The risk registers
provide a framework for all relevant staff
to recognise their shared responsibility
for an effective management of risks on
a regular and timely basis.

Our ERM system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that the Group’s assets are safeguarded,
the risks facing the business are being
assessed and all information that may
be required to be disclosed is reported
to the Board through the ARC. We have
reviewed the current ERM framework
and are of the view that it remains
appropriate for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

MANAGE RISK IN DELIVERING
STRATEGY

We remain focused on optimising our
existing businesses in commodities
trading. In pursuing our corporate
strategies and business goals, we
acknowledge that it is necessary to
take certain risks that we believe are
manageable and appropriate in relation
to expected opportunities. However, it
should be within our risk appetite by
taking into consideration our assessment
of the macro-environment that we are
operating in. We use key risk indicators
to ensure that the activities of the
business are within our risk appetite.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
AND CULTURE

The Group places considerable
importance on maintaining a strong
control environment to ensure that risks
are managed and business strategies
are executed. Policies and procedures,
Delegation of Authority matrix, minimum
internal controls and Code of Conduct
have been defined and put into
practice. Together with compliance with
laws and regulations, these established
procedures and internal guidelines form
the control environment of SP Corp for
which employees are accountable for
their compliance.



I SP CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017 I 07

RISK MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

In addition, the Group has established a
Whistle-blowing Policy since November
2006, under which employees and
external parties could, through well-
defined and accessible channels,
raise concerns in confidence about
possible improprieties in matters of
business activities, financial reporting
or other matters to the Whistle-blowing
Committee. The Committee is bound to
report, within certain established timeline,
the results of its investigation to the ARC.

On a quarterly basis, the head of each
business unit is required to submit
management representation letters
to the CEO and the CFO to confirm
the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control
systems, so as to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of
financial reporting, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and
integrity of information technology
systems in their respective units.
Such submissions form the basis of
the quarterly representation letters
presented by the CEO and the CFO
to the ARC. Compliance checklist and
declaration on conflicts of interest and
compliance with the Code of Conduct
by all employees have also been
obtained at the end of each financial
year to promote accountability.

The internal audit function is outsourced
to PricewaterhouseCoopers Risk
Services Pte. Ltd., which provides
independent checks on operational
issues and risk controls and reports
directly to the ARC.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLEMENTED
The Personal Data Protection Act 2012
in Singapore regulates the collection,
use, disclosure, transfer and security
of personal data. The Group is exposed
to personal data protection risk as
such data in our possession may
be subject to unauthorised access,
modification, disclosure, use, copying,
whether in hardcopy or electronic form.
Furthermore, this risk may expose the
Group to fines, payment of damages,

RISK ASSESSMENT AND OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE

Board (ARC, CEO and CFO)

— Review external environment
— Implement strategic goals

— Set risk culture through
decentralised management

4444

- Provide assurance on internal
controls and risk management

- Assess effectiveness of risk
management system

— Consider aggregation of risk
exposures

ddd g

Risk Owners (Business Units)

Execute risk management process through
risk tools and methodologies

or legal suits for non-compliance.
The Group has put in place a Personal
Data Protection Policy for employees
and stakeholders in January 2017.

To reinforce and enhance risk awareness,
SP Corp’s finance teams attended the
risk management training session during
the Tuan Sing Finance Conference
organised by our holding company in
August 2017.

€444

KEY RISK PROFILE 2017

We list the 21 key risks that have been
identified and in light of the changing
business environment, we are closely
monitoring the impact on our risk landscape.

NO THREAT TO GOING CONCERN
After making due inquiry, we are satisfied
that as on 31 December 2017, there
were no risks that could affect the ability
of the Group to continue as a going
concern in the next twelve months.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

RISK MATRIX TABLE
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RISK EXPOSURE AND APPETITE TABLE

Risk Level Action Requirements N

Not acceptable:
* Immediate action required
* Must be managed by senior management with a detailed treatment plan

Senior management attention:

* Senior management attention needed and management responsibility specified
* Treatment plans to be developed

* Must be monitored on regular frequency

Tolerable:

* Management responsibility must be specified
* Treatment plans to be developed

* Ongoing monitoring and review

Acceptable:

* Manage by routine process/procedures

* Consider additional controls only if they are clearly quantifiable cost benefit
* Ongoing monitoring and review

Acceptable:
Negligible * Manage by routine process/procedures
* Unlikely to require specific application of resources )
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RISK MANAGEMENT

BUSINESS AND STRATEGY RISKS

Business and strategy risks refer to factors affecting businesses such as customer demand, revenue attainment,
macroeconomic conditions, competition and regulatory environment. They are normally managed by each business unit in

the Group in its pursuit of growth and meeting earnings target.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Strategy Risk
e The Group is exposed to risks associated with

optimisation of existing businesses within the current
challenging environments and its expansion/diversification
plans.

e Expansion/diversification involves the financial burden of
setting up new business units and dealing with unfamiliar
rules and regulations in foreign countries or nuances in
customer service expectations.

Macroeconomic and Competition Risks

e (Changing macroeconomic conditions in the countries
where the Group operates may adversely affect the
Group’s performance.

e Qur relative size and reliance on principal suppliers may
be a disadvantage in the highly competitive markets of
commodities trading. The Group may be more vulnerable
to external shocks and negative occurrences specific to
its operations.

Business Continuity Risk

e The Group may face business continuity risks associated
with heavy reliance on principal suppliers for its coal
trading businesses as any significant changes in the
modus operandi of the principal suppliers, such as direct
market participation or limitations in pricing/delivery/
product range structures, will have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations and performance.

Political, Regulatory and Industry Risks

e Risks arising from uncertain political conditions and
changes in government policies, laws and regulations in
the countries where the Group operates may adversely
affect the Group’s performance or limit the market
demand and supply and impact the Group’s ability to
conduct business.

e The Group is exposed to the supply and demand cycles
of the commodities industry.

Customer Risk

e Risks associated with loss of customers through
uncompetitive pricing, inadequate service delivery,
unsatisfactory product quality, extended delivery lead
times or distant relationships.

Despite the challenges, the Group continues to remain
relevant in the business arena by leveraging on the
close business relationships with its principal suppliers
for reliable and quality supplies; and with key customers
through development of competitive sales strategy and
pricing structure to boost market presence. The Group
disposed of certain assets and discontinued its loss-
making tyre distribution business in 2017 so as to
improve profitability and conserve its resources for other
working capital requirements.

New investment proposal is evaluated carefully to ensure
that it is in line with the corporate strategy and investment
objectives and that it can meet the relevant hurdle rates
of financial returns in addition to consideration of other
relevant risk factors.

The Group monitors key economic indicators and keeps
itself updated on potential changes in the countries
where it operates.

The Group strives to maintain competitiveness through
differentiation in its service delivery to key customers
and forging collaborative relationships with its principal
suppliers.

The Group maintains a nimble organisation structure
which is responsive and easily adaptable to changing
environments.

The Group engages in regular communications with its
principal suppliers to ensure continuous flows of quality
supplies.

The Group maintains good relationships with all suppliers
to reduce its vulnerability to significant concentration of
supply risk.

The Group monitors changes in political and industry
conditions in countries where it operates and keeps itself
updated on changes of regulations by the authorities.
The Group maintains close working relationships with
advisors and local authorities so as to keep abreast with
any changes.

The Group maintains strong relationships with customers
and ensures reliability of supplies to them in terms
of quality and delivery through established business
relations with principal suppliers. )
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RISK MANAGEMENT

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Reputation Risk
e The Group may face negative publicity if there is
mishandling of transactions or events.

Terrorism Risk

e The Group may be adversely affected by unpredictable
terrorist attacks.

e This will potentially result in damage on assets and
disruption in operations and may cause irreversible
impact on the safety and lives of personnel.

N

The Group values its reputation and has put in place an
open communication programme to ensure timely and
effective communication with its key stakeholders.

This is an inherent risk and uncontrollable event that the
Group cannot avoid.

The Group has disaster recovery plan in place.

All leased premises of the Group are managed by
established property owners with security measures in

place. Y,

FINANCIAL RISKS

Financial risks arise from volatility in the underlying financial market and include factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange

and equity prices.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Liquidity Risk

e Availability of banking facilities or additional debt-financing
on favourable terms is subject to prevailing external
factors including global and local economic conditions,
credit and capital market sentiments, etc.

Foreign Exchange and Derivative Financial Instruments

Risks

e Exchange gains or losses may arise when assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated or
exchanged into Singapore dollars for financial reporting
or repatriation purposes.

e Market conditions may move against the assumptions
the Group adopts at the time of hedging transactions,
an inherent risk.

Price Risk

e Risk of variability and volatility in pricing trends of
commodities may have an adverse impact on the Group’s
performance.

Credit Risk

e Credit risk arises when counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance its
operations.

The Group manages trade financing proactively to ensure
financing requirements are met as and when required
with strict compliance on banking covenants.

Cash flow projections and available bank facilities are
actively reviewed to ensure efficient management of
liquidity position, including usage of internal funds to
reduce dependency on external financing.

Natural hedging is used extensively including matching
sale and purchase or matching asset and liability of the
same currency and amount whenever practicable.
Currency translation risk is inherent for operations outside
Singapore, non-cash in nature and is therefore not
hedged.

Derivative financial instruments are only used to manage
foreign currency exposure.

Hedging is to meet actual operational requirements, not
for speculative purposes.

This is an inherent risk that the Group cannot avoid.
The Group keeps abreast of developments in global
markets and key price indicators.

Standard operating procedures are in place, which
include extending pre-approved credit terms to credit-
worthy customers and monitoring credit risk on a regular
basis.

Major collectability issues are highlighted in monthly
operations reports circulated to the Board and
management meetings. )
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RISK MANAGEMENT

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Interest Rate Risk
e The Group is exposed to interest rate fluctuations from e The Group keeps abreast of the trend of interest rate
trade financing or bank borrowings. movements.
e The Group optimises net interest cost and reduces
volatility in finance cost.

Tax Risk
e The Group is exposed to vagaries of tax interpretations e The Group monitors changes in tax rulings in different
or changes at short notice in foreign jurisdictions. countries on a periodic basis.

e Tax provisions are made in strict compliance to the rules
so as to reduce under-accrual in the book of accounts.

Financial Management Risk
e Other than the Group’s policies and guidelines and e Internal controls over financial reporting are reviewed

the internal audit function which has been outsourced, regularly. The process has already been embedded

the Group relies on self-assessment, review and within our corporate governance structure.

reporting process of each business unit to ensure e On a quarterly basis, business units’ operating and

that transactions are carried out in conformity with the finance heads are to report the results of their self-review

accounting standards and Group accounting policies in their management representation letter.

and that the internal controls are adequate and effective. e Quarterly management representation letter also serves
e This system may not prevent or detect all frauds or as a platform for all business units’ operating and finance

misstatements in a timely manner. heads to highlight any transactions and/or events which
e Changes in conditions or operations may cause system may have material or potential financial impact to the

\_ effectiveness to vary from time to time. Group. )

OPERATIONAL RISKS
Operational risks refer to persons, processes, products, information technology and practices in the business activities which
may not operate as designed or planned.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Ethics and Integrity Risk
e Risk of fraudulent, illegal or unethical acts committed by ® Policies and procedures, Delegation of Authority matrix,

emp|oyees‘ customers or Supp“ers against the Group minimum aCCeptable internal COﬂtrO|S, Code of Conduct
may cause loss in profitability, or assets or reputational which covers conflicts of interest and business ethics,
damage and Whistle-blowing Policy, have been defined and put

into practice. In January 2017, the Group adopted the
Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption Policy. Accountability
is established through year-end internal control self-
assessment review by each business unit and annual
declaration by each employee which requires each employee
to disclose any instances of conflicts of interest or raising
any issues or concerns of possible irregularities of the
Company’s or the Group’s affairs.

Information Technology and Cyber Security Risks
e The Group is susceptible to information technology and e The Group complemented its Policy on Management

cyber security risks which are a constantly evolving Information Systems by implementing the Information
threat to an entity’s ability to achieve its objectives and Security Policy in January 2017, covering cyber security
deliver its core functions. Security failings or network and data protection measures. All employees are

to observe these policies at all times to ensure the
integrity and availability of information while preventing
unauthorised access to the Group’s information
systems. Appropriate steps have been taken to prevent

disruptions in today’s information-driven economy can
result in significant long-term expense to affected entities
and substantially damage consumer trust and brand

reputation. Sensitive customer information, intellectual unauthorised modification. destruction. or disclosure
property and even control of key equipment are of these assets, whether accidental or intentional, as
increasingly at risk from cyber attack. well as to ensure the security, reliability, integrity and

availability of the data.
N\ 4 J
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RISK MANAGEMENT

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

People Risk

The Group depends on the services of good personnel
for business continuity.

Succession plan execution is a challenge given the size
of the Group.

Sourcing Risk

The Group is exposed to risks associated with failure of
suppliers to provide timely and quality products, limited
or significant concentration of supplies, or failure of utility
supplies.

Work Health and Safety Risk

N

The Group is exposed to work health and safety risks
of employees arising from incidents in the work place,
pandemics, etc.

Insurance Risk

The Group is exposed to the risks (such as war, outbreak
of contagious diseases, environmental breaches) that
may not be insurable or the premium prohibitive or
damage suffered may not be fully compensated by
insurance proceeds.

The Group provides a safe working environment under
which employees could develop their career with work-life
balance and appropriate training and development
opportunities so as to ensure that human capital are
nurtured and retained.

Competitive salary packages are offered based on
performance that is mapped against key performance
indicators agreed at the beginning of the financial year.

Operating manuals, standard operating procedures,
Delegation of Authority matrix are in place on sourcing
process.

The Group expands suppliers’ base where applicable to
reduce over-reliance on any suppliers.

The Group cultivates a safety-consciousness culture at
all levels and has implemented a Workplace Safety and
Health Policy.

Refresher drills on fire safety, emergency evacuation and
first aid response are conducted regularly.

Disease pandemic preparedness plan is in place to
safeguard the health and welfare of employees and to
ensure quick resumption of critical business functions.

The Group conducts insurance review with insurance
brokers on an annual basis to ensure adequate and
comprehensive insurance coverage.

J

COMPLIANCE RISKS
Compliance risks are the current and prospective risks arising from violation of, or non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations,
or ethical standards.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS WHAT WE DO TO MANAGE THE RISKS

Compliance Risk

There have been rapid changes in laws, regulations and
practices making compliance more complicated.
The Group’s internal control systems and related
framework may not be kept up-to-date on time.

Internal controls, risk management and corporate
governance frameworks, and internal control self-
assessment processes have all been in place and are
reviewed on an annual basis.

Whistle-blowing Policy and annual declaration by staff
on conflicts of interest and compliance with the Code of
Conduct have been implemented.

External auditors are engaged for statutory audit and
internal auditors are engaged to conduct operations
review; both report directly to the ARC.
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SUSTAINABILITY

MANAGING SUSTAINABILITY

SP Corporation Limited (the “Company”
or “SP Corp”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) recognise the importance
of our roles as responsible corporate
citizens towards our stakeholders
while in pursuit of a sustainable future
that enhances long-term shareholder
value. Our stakeholders comprise
shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers, and the communities and
environment in which we operate.

SP Corp’s sustainability approach
focuses on maintaining resilience to
adapt to changing business landscape
through deployment of sustainable
and efficient processes by improving
the bottom line, developing our human
capital and making positive contributions
to the communities and the environment.

SCOPE OF REPORT

We prepare our Sustainability Report
for the financial year from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”)
by reference to the Global Reporting
Initiative (“GRI”) — G4 Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines issued by the
Global Sustainability Standards Board.
We are also guided by Practice Note
7.6 of the Sustainability Reporting
Guide issued by the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST”), in particular, paragraph 4
therein. Based on GRI’'s recommended
approach to sustainability reporting
and SGX-ST’s Sustainability Reporting
Guide, this report covers key areas
of sustainability, namely, Corporate
Governance and Risk Management,
Stakeholder Engagement (investor
relations), Economic, Environmental and
Social (labour and society). These key
environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) factors are deemed material
to the Group by our Board of Directors
(the “Board”). This report has not been
audited by an external entity.

BOARD STATEMENT

In compliance with SGX-ST Listing Rules
711A and 711B, our Board acknowledges
that its members are collectively
responsible for the long-term strategic
direction of the Company and that it has
considered sustainability issues as part
of its strategic formulation. The Board is
committed to the Group’s efforts towards
the employment of sustainable practices
as it is our strategic approach to integrate
sustainability in all aspects of our business
and operations. This sustainability report,
containing the primary components as
set out in Rule 711B, is issued with the
approval of the Board.

IDENTIFICATION OF MATERIAL ESG FACTORS
We have identified the following ESG factors that have a material impact on our
business and have set our targets for FY2018 using FY2017 as the baseline:

PRIMARY MATERIAL FACTORS PERFORMANCE TARGETS FOR FY2018

FACTORS MEASURES

Environment| (1) Electricity Electricity consumption Reduce consumption levels
consumption (kKWh)

Paper consumption

) Paper consumption (Tonnes)
) Water consumption

)

)

Water consumption (Cu M)

2
@

Social (4) Employee retention | Staff turnover rate Improve staff training hours
5

Training and Training hours and training
education of costs
employees

(6) Diversity, i.e.
embedded diversity
in the Company’s
culture, creating
a more flexible
working environment

(7)  Community services

Percentage comparison of
male to female employees

Donations/Volunteer hours Increase volunteer hours

Maintain “zero tolerance” on
corruption and fraud

Improve SGTI ranking or
score

Continue to release financial
results within one month
from the end of each

Governance | (8) Corporate
governance and risk

management

Singapore Governance and
Transparency Index

\_ quarter and year-end Y,

Amongst the key material ESG factors, we have charted the following matrix based
on the likelihood of influence on our stakeholders and the impact to our business:

SP Corp’s Material Factors Matrix

(3 5 (4) Employee retention (8) Corporate governance
R (5) Training and education of employees and risk management
D
2|E
- | 2
= T
o ()

o =
k) z (6) Diversity (1)  Electricity consumption
3 3 (7) Community |(2) Paper consumption
£ services (8) Water consumption
Low Medium High
L Likelihood of influence on our stakeholders )

SP Corp is committed to sustain our economic performance and enhance long-term
shareholder value while balancing the environmental and social impact through
robust corporate governance and risk management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SP Corp strives to adhere to a high standard of corporate governance, accountability
and transparency. We believe that conducting business in a responsible manner is
essential for the sustainability of the Group’s businesses and performance as well
as ensuring long-term value for our stakeholders.

The Board monitors the effectiveness of management and regularly reviews the
Group’s corporate governance practices and maintains continual robustness of
governance that is reflective of changes in the existing environment. The Board
adheres to the principles and guidelines of the Singapore’s Code of Corporate
Governance 2012. The Group has in place a Code of Conduct that sets out the
main principles of the conduct and business ethics covering areas such as conflicts
of interest, confidentiality of information and conduct in workplace. Ongoing review
of the Code of Conduct ensures new policies are put in place to meet challenges
brought about by the changing business environment, such as the introduction of
new policies on Information Security, Personal Data Protection and Anti-bribery
and Anti-corruption in January 2017. Integrity and ethical behaviour remain as
the fundamental elements in the context of Code of Conduct and this has been
cascaded from top to bottom and across all levels within the Group. In addition,
we have a Whistle-blowing Policy in place to enable our employees, and external
parties such as suppliers and customers to report any non-compliance or dishonest



SUSTAINABILITY

practices or signal serious matters that
they may be aware of. For detailed
discussion on the Group’s corporate
governance practices, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of the Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment and management is
an integral part of the strategic and
operational decision-making process
at SP Corp. The Board provides
guidance and policy direction on the
risk management framework and has
overall responsibility in determining the
business risk levels that is acceptable
to the Group in achieving its corporate
objectives.

The overall framework established
by the Group is to enhance the
soundness of its financial reporting,
risk management, compliance and
internal control systems and to provide
a holistic and systematic approach to
address risks encountered at various
levels of business operations and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations at all times. The Board
together with management determines
the risk management objectives and
policies and promotes a culture of risk
awareness and balanced risk-taking.

For the financial year under review,
management believes that the current
framework for managing risks remains
appropriate. Although risks cannot be
completely eliminated, an effective risk
identification and management process
will reduce the uncertainties in achieving
the Group’s business objectives and
allow the Group to take advantage of
opportunities that may arise.

Risks are evaluated based on criteria
developed for the Group and standard
methodology and templates are used to
facilitate management reporting. On an
annual basis, a risk management report
highlighting potential risks relating to
the Group’s business operations and
measures to mitigate such identified
risks, is submitted to our Audit and Risk
Committee and our Board. For details
of the discussion on the Group’s risk
management practices, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Risk Management Statement” sections
of the Annual Report.

Singapore Governance and
Transparency Index

The Singapore Governance and
Transparency Index (“SGTI”) is a
tripartite collaboration between CPA
Australia, NUS Business School’s
Centre for Governance, Institutions

and Organisations, and The Business
Times. It assesses companies on their
corporate governance disclosures and
practices, as well as the timeliness,
accessibility and transparency of their
financial results announcement. Based
on the latest ranking published on the
SGX-ST website, SP Corp was ranked
61" position among the listed companies
in Singapore.

SGTI YEAR RANK SCORE
2017 61 73
2016 118 63
2015 226 51
2014 70 61
2013 77 53
2012 46 54
2011 40 52
2010 43 49
2009 53 46

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We take a proactive approach and
engage in timely communications
through various platforms such as
quarterly results announcements. The
Group disseminates all announcements
to SGX-ST via SGXNET and our
corporate website. Our corporate
website (www.spcorp.com.sg) also
provides information on the Group’s
business operations, past financial
results announcements, and annual
reports. In line with our commitment
for timely disclosure, we have over the
years brought forward the dates on
which we announce our results, where
our quarterly results are made within
one month of the end of each quarter.
Since 2012, we have released full-year
audited financial results together with a
copy of our audited statutory financial
statements, within one month of the
financial year-end.

The Company encourages participation
of shareholders at the Company’s
Annual General Meetings. Such
meetings are held at venues in the
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Central Business District which
are convenient and accessible to
shareholders. Every shareholder is
entitled to appoint up to two proxies
to attend and vote on his/her behalf
save that no limit shall be imposed
on the number of proxies for nominee
companies. QOur Annual General
Meeting this year will be held on
17 April 2018 at the MND Function Room,
Annexe A, 9 Maxwell Road, MND
Complex, Singapore 069112. Our
Board, management and external
auditors will be present to address
shareholders’ queries during the
meeting and during informal interaction
after the meeting.

ENHANCING LONG-TERM
SHAREHOLDER VALUE

SP Corp strives to work towards
enhancing long-term value for
shareholders. For the past five
financial years from 2013 to 2017,
we have delivered a cumulative
profit attributable to shareholders of
$8.2 million. Our earnings per share
averaged 4.7 cents per annum during
the 5-year period. Shareholders’ funds
increased at a compounded average
growth rate (“CAGR”) of approximately
3% per annum to $50.8 million as
at 31 December 2017, compared to
$44.5 million as at 31 December 2013.
Net asset value per share grew at a
CAGR of approximately 3% per annum
from $1.27 in 2013 to $1.45 in 2017.
Please refer to the “Five-Year Financial
Summary” section of the Annual
Report for details.

ENVIRONMENTAL INITIATIVES

We seek harmony with the environment
and strive to play a part in contributing
back to the community in which we live
and work. We have embarked on green
initiatives in the workplace by reducing
energy consumption, implementing
energy-efficient measures, using
sustainable supplies, and increasing
waste recycling to reduce resource
depletion. We encourage our employees
to be environmentally responsible.

Below are our key environmental performance indicators:

ENVIRONMENT

Electricity consumption (kWh)
Paper consumption (Tonnes)
Water consumption (Cu M)

2017 2016 2015
204,182 237,907 159,282
0.36 0.63 0.76
1,069 1,543 2,516

As part of SP Corp’s environmental conservation initiatives and efforts in 2018, we
are discontinuing our practice of mailing our Annual Report for FY2017. Electronic
edition of this Annual Report is available at www.spcorp.com.sg.
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Indirect Energy Consumption Trend

SP Corp remains committed to reducing our energy consumption across our
business operations. The Tyre Distribution Unit’s increase in electricity consumption
in 2016 was mainly due to the resumption of production activities at our retread
plant in Malaysia from December 2015. The lower electricity consumption in 2017
reflected the lower production activities at our retread plant in Malaysia.

Paper Consumption Trend

The lower paper consumption in 2016 was mainly due to lower sales activities
in the Tyre Distribution Unit and the absence of corporate exercise in the Group.
The lower paper consumption in 2017 reflected the lower sales and production
activities.

Total Indirect Energy Consumption Total Volume of Paper Consumed

(kWh) (Tonnes)
237,907 0.76
204,182 063
159,282
72,963
73,818 0.36 o 0.42
77,026
164,944 0.20
130,364 -
’ 82,256 0.33 0.34
0.16
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
Tyre Commodities Group Tyre Commodities Group
Distribution Trading Unit Total Distribution ~ Trading Unit Total
Unit & Corporate Unit & Corporate

PEOPLE RELATIONS AND
DEVELOPMENT

We recognise the importance of training,
developing, growing and retaining our
human capital through implementation
of effective human resource policies
and practices. We focus on providing a
safe, clean and balanced workplace for
our employees.

Total Water Consumption (Cu M)

2,516

We offer competitive pay packages
that are linked to market practices and
reward employees based on merit.
The Company’s remuneration package
comprises a fixed component and a
variable component which is linked
to the Company’s performance, the
business unit's performance as well as
the individual’s performance.

1,543
1,069

2017 2016
Tyre Distribution Unit

2015

Water Consumption Trend

The higher water consumption in 2015
was mainly due to water pipe leakage
at the warehouse premises. The lower
water consumption in 2017 was largely
due to the reduction in headcounts in
the Tyre Distribution Unit in view of the
completion of the first phase of asset
sale in August 2017.

LABOUR

Monthly employee turnover
Training hours per employee
Percentage of male to female employees

Key performance indicators are agreed
with the employees at the beginning
of each year to ensure employee
motivation and alignment of their
interests with that of the Company.

Our people are treated fairly regardless
of their background. We adopt an open
door policy to facilitate and encourage
formal and informal interaction and
discussion amongst employees at all
levels. A Whistle-blowing Committee
was also set up to look into any
feedback received from our employees
on unfair work practices, corruption and
misconduct.

We believe in integrity and
professionalism in the conduct of our
business activities and expect our
employees to embrace, practise and
adopt these values. To ensure our
employees understand the Group’s
philosophy in this aspect, the Group’s
Code of Conduct is made available to
all staff on the day they join the Group.
All employees are required to make an
annual declaration on involvement in
any conflict of interest situation and
compliance with the Code of Conduct.

Our people are encouraged to participate
in training and development programmes
such as professional training, executive
and leadership development as well as
technical seminars, for career growth
and personal development. In particular,
to prepare for the implementation in
2018 of the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International),
our finance team members attended
a 26-hour tailor-made workshop by
Deloitte Business Advisory, Singapore
during the financial year.

Our employees and their family members
have access to annual complimentary
basic health screenings. They are also
offered fairly comprehensive health
screening packages at preferential
corporate rates. We assist our
employees to achieve a work-life
balance by observing a five-day work-
week, having regard to the requirements
of the Company and the exigencies of
the business.

Below are our key labour performance indicators:

2017 2016 2015
7.4% 0.9% 1.3%
5.0 3.5 5.7

76:24 62:38 58:42

The higher employee turnover in 2017 arose mainly from the Tyre Distribution Unit

due to the asset sales and discontinuation of the tyre distribution business.
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Employee Profile as at 31 December 2017

Employees by Category

Directors / Senior 14%

Management
Managers 4%
Executives 11%

0%

I 12%

Non-Executives

Staff

60% 40% 20% 0% 20% 40% 60%

© Male @ Female

Employees by Nationality

52%

@ Chinese
Malaysian

@ Indonesian
() Singaporean
@ Vietnamese

Employees by Age Band

® 20-30 @ 31-40
41-50 @ 51-60
@ Above 60

Employees by Gender

@ Male

Female

Employees by Years of Service

@ More than 15 @ 11-15
6-10 O 3-5
@ Less than 3

Workplace Safety and Health

We place great emphasis within our
organisation to promote workplace
safety and healthy work environment for
our staff, customers, contractors and
visitors. We have in place a pandemic
preparedness plan that can be activated
at short notice.

Our workplace safety and health policy

is:

e To place safety and health of all
employees as part of the Company’s
objective and interest;

e To provide resources to maintain
plant and equipment and systems
of work that are safe and without
risks to health;

e To provide adequate training,
information and instruction with
regards to workplace safety and
health;

e To ensure safety and health of
persons in connection with the use,
handling, storage and transport of
articles and substances;

e To provide adequate and proper
facilities, equipment and safety
apparel and ensure their correct
applications;

e To monitor the effectiveness of
safety and health provisions within
the workplace;

e To conduct regular review of the
policy and to continually improve the
risk assessment and management
process;

e To ensure that the requirements
of occupational safety and health
legislation are complied with; and

e To review as and when required.

The tyre servicemen from a subsidiary
of SP Corp, Globaltraco International
Pte Ltd (“Globaltraco”)’s PSA TTMP
team, have continued to maintain a
high working standard in delivering
their duties in PSA. Their efforts in
workplace safety have been recognised
by PSA for four years through the
nomination of the team for the Safety
Conscious Award for 2012, 2013, 2015
and 2016. For the three consecutive
years from 2014 to 2016, Globaltraco
was awarded the Injury Free
(Engineering) Award for Engineering
Contractors by PSA Safety Council for
the team’s achievement of injury free
performance.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

For the three consecutive years from
2012 to 2014 and 2016, SP Corp had
participated in the annual sponsored
events jointly organised by our holding
company and certain non-profit
organisations to reach out to the less
privileged community. Below are our
key social performance indicators:

COMMUNITY 2017 2016 2015

Donations ($) 6,000 2,500 -
Volunteer hours 20 64 -

On 23 May 2017, our employees,
together with our holding company,
engaged with the beneficiaries from
the Bethesda Care Centre of RSVP
Singapore’s Mentally Disadvantaged
Outreach Programme. The beneficiaries
were treated to a lunch at Eighteen
Chefs Restaurant where they had a
great chat with the Group’s employees
before proceeding to enjoy a movie
screening. Many of the beneficiaries
have not visited a cinema for years.
The lunch at Eighteen Chefs Restaurant
was chosen with another purpose:
to show our Group’s support to the
restaurant which provides a safe and
non-judgmental working environment
for troubled youths and people with
conviction backgrounds to find positive
ways to reintegrate back into society.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ($’000) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Revenue 127,726 125,640 119,675 131,913 152,591
Profit before tax 418 2,252 1,614 2,303 2,549
Income tax expense 29 (450) (148) (172) (146)
Profit after tax 447 1,802 1,466 2,131 2,403
AT YEAR END ($°000) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Plant and equipment 172 375 530 305 436
Other assets 66,841 77,596 76,193 68,446 70,849
Total assets 67,013 77,971 76,723 68,751 71,285
Shareholders’ funds 50,806 52,984 50,364 47,598 44,498
Other liabilities 16,207 24,987 26,359 21,153 26,787
Total liabilities and equity 67,013 77,971 76,723 68,751 71,285
SHARE PRICES ($) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Last transacted” 0.85 0.48 1.10 1.00 1.20
High* 0.95 1.20 1.10 1.20 1.20
Low* 0.48 0.36 0.80 0.80 0.90
Average (arithmetic)* 0.72 0.78 0.95 1.00 1.05
Turnover (million shares) 1.05 1.84 0.64 0.27 0.90
SHAREHOLDERS’ RETURNS

AND FINANCIAL RATIOS 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Earnings per share (cents)* 1.27 5.13 4.18 6.07 6.85
Net assets per share (dollar)* 1.45 1.51 1.43 1.36 1.27
Return on shareholders’ funds (%) 0.9% 3.5% 3.0% 4.6% 5.6%
Return on total assets (%) 0.6% 2.3% 2.0% 3.0% 3.4%

* On 14 May 2015, the Company completed its share consolidation exercise. The comparative figures have been adjusted for the effect of share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

consolidation.

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

24 April 2017

Announcement of first quarter financial
results for the period ended 31 March
2017

17 April 2018 Proposed announcement of first quarter
financial results for the period ending
31 March 2018

25 July 2017

Announcement of half-year financial
results for the period ended 30 June 2017

24 October 2017

Announcement of third quarter financial
results for the period ended 30 September
2017

25 January 2018

Announcement of full-year financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2017

16 March 2018

Dispatch of 2017 Annual Report

17 April 2018

65" Annual General Meeting

24 July 2018 Proposed announcement of half-year
financial results for the period ending
30 June 2018

23 October 2018 Proposed announcement of third quarter
financial results for the period ending
30 September 2018

24 January 2019 Proposed announcement of full-year
financial results for the year ending
31 December 2018

Note: The dates for the proposed results announcements in 2018 and
2019 are indicative only and are subject to change.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SP Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) continue to be committed to high standards of
corporate conduct. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and Management believe that good corporate governance is key
to the integrity of the Group and essential to the long-term sustainability of the Group’s businesses and performance. To
discharge its governance function, the Board and its committees have established policies and rules to govern their activities.
The Board and its committees are guided by their respective written Terms of References.

The Board is pleased to report the Company’s corporate governance practices for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 (“FY2017”) with specific reference to each guideline of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”).

The Board, after making due inquiries, believes that the Company has complied in all material aspects with the principles

and guidelines as set out in the Code. Where the Company’s practices differ from any principle or guideline, the Company’s
position in respect of the same is explained in this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

o
OOOO

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Cheng Hong Kok
2 Independent and

1 Non-Independent Directors

o
Il
SHAREHOLDERS

]

i

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Tan Lye Huat
3 Independent Directors

O BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman: Mr Peter Sung
6 Directors:

3 Independent and

3 Non-Independent

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Cheng Hong Kok
2 Independent and

MANAGEMENT 1 Non-Independent Directors

®)

COMMODITIES TYRE CORPORATE INTERNAL WHISTLE-BLOWING
TRADING UNIT DISTRIBUTION AND AUDITORS COMMITTEE
UNIT OTHERS

I. BOARD MATTERS

The Board oversees the overall strategy and business direction of the Group and is collectively responsible for its long-term
success. Management also plays a pivotal role in providing Board members with complete, adequate and timely information
to assist the Directors in the fulfilment of their responsibilities.

Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

Guideline 1.1
Principal Duties of the Board
Apart from its statutory duties, during FY2017 the Board also performed the following:

i providing entrepreneurial leadership, setting corporate strategies and ensuring that the necessary financial and human
resources are in place for the Group to meet its objectives;
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ii. reviewing and approving the Group’s annual business plan, including the annual budget, operational and capital
expenditure plans as well as constructively challenge Management on the strategic options and planning process;

iii. reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and ensuring that Management
maintains a sound system of internal controls (including financial, operational, compliance and information technology)
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets;

iv. overseeing the conduct of the Company and evaluate whether the business is properly managed, and reviewing the
performance of Management in meeting agreed goals and objectives; and

V. monitoring the Group’s performance, position and prospects by reviewing management/operations reports and
management accounts on a monthly basis.

Guideline 1.2

Objective Decision Making

The Board exercises due diligence and independent judgement in dealing with the business affairs of the Group and works
with Management to make objective decisions in the interest of the Group.

The Company has in place a financial authority matrix and approval guidelines for the operations of the Group. Matters requiring
specific written approval of the Board are set out under Guideline 1.5 of this Report.

Guideline 1.3

Delegation by the Board

The Board is supported by three Board committees to assist it in the discharge of its responsibilities and to enhance the
Company’s corporate governance framework. These committees include the Nominating Committee (“NC”), the Remuneration
Committee (“RC”) and the Audit and Risk Committee (“ARC”). Each Board committee has its own specific Terms of Reference
setting out the scope of its duties and responsibilities, rules and regulations, and procedures governing the manner in which
it is to operate and how decisions are to be taken. Any change to the terms of reference for any Board committees requires
Board approval.

The Board approves transactions exceeding certain thresholds, while delegating authority for transactions below those limits
to its committees and Management via a structured Delegation of Authority matrix. This matrix is reviewed on a regular basis
and accordingly revised when necessary (last reviewed on 24 November 2016). More details on the Board’s delegation are
presented below. The Board committees and Management remain accountable to the Board.

Guideline 1.4

Board and Board Committees Meetings and Attendance Records of the Board Members

The Board and its committees met regularly based on schedules planned one year ahead so as to ensure maximum attendance
by all participants and as warranted by particular circumstances. On occasions when Directors were unable to attend meetings
in person, telephonic participation at the meetings is allowed under the Constitution of the Company. To enable members of
the Board and its committees to prepare for the meetings, agendas and materials were circulated at least one week before
the meetings.

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during FY2017 is set out below:

Audit and Risk Nominating Remuneration General
2017 Meeting Attendance Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Total Number of Meetings 5 4 1 1 1
Peter Sung 5 - - 1 1
Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu) 3 - - - 1
Cheng Hong Kok 5 4 1 1 1
Chong Chou Yuen B 4 - - 1
William Nursalim alias William Liem 3 - 1 - 1
Tan Lye Huat 5 4 1 1 1
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During FY2017, Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) also communicated or met amongst themselves
and/or with the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEOQ”) and his management team on an ad hoc basis
to approve and/or discuss specific issues or matters relating to the Group. Such informal discussions and meetings are not
included in the above table.

Guideline 1.5

Internal Guidelines on Matters Requiring Board Approval

The Company has established guidelines governing matters that require the Board’s approval. The Delegation of Authority
matrix provides clear directions to Management on matters requiring the Board’s specific approval which include (but not
limited to) the following:

i material acquisition and disposal of assets/investments

ii. corporate/financial restructuring and corporate exercises

iii. budgets/forecasts
iv. material financial/funding arrangements and capital expenditures
V. delegation of authority matrix and policies and procedures

The Board reviewed and approved the Group’s annual budget and business plans and on a monthly basis, monitored the
financial performance of the Group. The Board also deliberated on other key business activities and material transactions that
exceeded the limits of authority delegated to Management or Board committees. In addition, the Board considered issues
relating to the current and future business developments and strategic direction of the Group, and material developments
relating to accounting, legal, regulatory and/or corporate governance issues.

Guideline 1.6

Board Orientation and Training

It is our policy to provide new Directors with a detailed and thorough induction, including meeting with key management
personnel and an overview of their responsibility. Where necessary, the Company will provide training for the first-time Directors
in areas such as accounting, legal and industry-specific knowledge.

The Company offers Directors opportunities to update and refresh their knowledge on an ongoing basis, to enable them to
continue fulfilling their roles as Board members and Committee members effectively.

The Board is routinely being updated on pertinent developments in the business including changes in laws and regulations,
code of corporate governance, financial reporting standards and industry-related matters so as to enable them to effectively
discharge their duties. Training attended by some of the Directors in FY2017 includes (1) Singapore Governance and
Transparency Index (SGTI) Forum — Beyond Governance. Towards Performance. organised by CPA Australia, NUS Business
School and the Singapore Institute of Directors (“SID”), (2) SID Directors’ Conference — The Sustainability Imperative organised
by SID, (3) Cybercrime and Business Ethics Compliance, and (4) Impact of Diversity on Directors’ Decision Making.

The Company will fund Directors’ participation at industry conferences, seminars or any training programme in connection
with their duties as Directors. During FY2017, Management informed the Directors of relevant training programs, seminars
and workshops organised by various professional bodies and organisations. Certain Powerpoint presentations covering, inter
alia, an update on Cyber Security, Insurance on Terrorism, International Financial Reporting Statements and Transfer Pricing
were circulated to the Directors for their information.

Guideline 1.7

Appointment Letter to new Director

Upon appointment to the Board, all new Directors receive a formal letter of appointment together with a thumb drive containing
relevant information which includes Directors’ duties and responsibilities, Board and Board committees’ meetings schedule
of the Company, the Company’s last Annual Report, Constitution, respective Board committees’ terms of reference which
also set out the remuneration framework for Directors and the Group’s “Guidelines for dealing in securities by Directors and
Employees of SP Corporation Group”. Directors are given appropriate briefings by Management on the business activities
of the Group, its strategic directions, and the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices when they are first
appointed to the Board.

No new Director was appointed during FY2017.
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Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance

Guideline 2.1

Independent Element of the Board

The NC determines the independence of each Director annually. An Independent Director is one who has no relationship with
the Company, its related companies, its 10% shareholdersM® ' or its officers that can interfere, or be reasonably perceived to
interfere with the exercise of the Director’s independent business judgement to the best interests of the Company.

There were six Board members in FY2017 - three were independent and three were non-independent. Other than the CEO,
all directors were non-executive.

The NC conducted its annual review of the Directors’ independence and was satisfied that the Company complies with the
guideline of the Code which provides that at least one-third of the Board is made up of Independent Directors.

Independent Director
50%

Executive Director
17%

Non-Executive
Director
83%

Non-Independent
Director
50%

Guideline 2.2

Composition of Independent Directors on the Board

Guideline 2.2 of The Code provides that Independent Directors shall make up at least half of the Board where, inter alia, the
Chairman of the Board is not an Independent Director. In November 2017, the Chairman of the Board, Mr Peter Sung had
declared and deemed himself an independent director of the Company. The NC had reviewed the declaration of Mr Sung and
recommended that the Board gives its approval for Mr Sung to be re-designated a Non-Executive and Independent Director
of the Company. The Board, having considered the recommendation of the NC, approved the re-designation of Mr Sung as
an Independent Director with effect from 4 December 2017.

Following the aforesaid re-designation of Mr Peter Sung, the Company no longer needs to comply with Guideline 2.2 as
Mr Sung who is also the Chairman of the Board is now an Independent Director.

Guideline 2.3

Independence of Directors

The NC, in its deliberation as to the independence of a Director, took into account examples of relationships as set out in the
Code, considered whether a Director had business relationships with the Group, and if so, whether such relationships could
interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s independent judgement. The process
includes the use of a declaration form on independence which each Independent Director is required to complete and submit
to the NC for review. The results of the self-assessment are then collated, communicated and reported to the Board.

The NC has assessed the independence of Messrs Cheng Hong Kok, Peter Sung and Tan Lye Huat, and is satisfied that
there is no relationship or other factors such as gifts or financial assistance, past association, business dealings, being a
representative of a shareholder, financial dependence, relationship with the Group or the Group’s Management, etc. which
would impair the independent judgement or which would deem them to be not independent.

Note1 A “10% shareholder” is a person who has an interest or interests in one or more voting shares in the Company and the total votes attached
to that share or those shares is not less than 10% of the total votes attached to all the voting shares in the Company. “Voting shares” exclude
treasury shares. The Company did not have any treasury shares as at 31 December 2017.
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The NC noted Mr Cheng Hong Kok’s directorship in the Company’s holding company, Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (“Tuan
Sing”). The NC is of the view that Mr Cheng is not a nominee Director of Tuan Sing and he has not and will not interfere, or be
reasonably perceived to interfere with his ability to exercise independent judgement and act in the best interest of the Group.

The Company'’s transactions with Tuan Sing were covered by the Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person Transactions.
During FY2017, Tuan Sing provided management support services to the Company. The aggregate value of the transaction
was not significant compared to the revenues of the Company and Tuan Sing. Moreover, Mr Cheng was not involved in the
decision making of the transactions between the Company and Tuan Sing.

The NC also noted that Mr Peter Sung is currently an adviser of Nuri Holdings (S) Pte Ltd (“Nuri”), the deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company and he is paid advisory fees the amount of which is not significant (i.e. not exceeding $200,000
per annum). Therefore, the NC believes that there is no relationship between him and Nuri that could interfere with the exercise
of his independent business judgement and his ability to act in the best interests of the Company.

Guideline 2.4

Independence of Directors who have served on the Board beyond nine years

During FY2017, Messrs Cheng Hong Kok and Tan Lye Huat having served on the Board as Independent Directors for more
than nine years, had voluntarily submitted themselves for assessment on their independence status by the other Directors. In
the process, all other Directors were requested to complete a questionnaire to review more rigorously the independence of
Independent Directors who have served on the Board beyond nine years. The assessment included the following:

i Contribution: whether he offered objective and constructive opinions concerning Interested Person Transactions (“IPT”);
whether he made independent judgement or decisions or adopted an autonomous stand at meetings;

ii. Knowledge and abilities: whether he used his knowledge and abilities to challenge Management’s assertions/responses
particularly on IPTs;

iii. Integrity: whether he demonstrated objective, fair and ethical behaviour in decision making and whether he acted as

'

minority shareholders’ “gatekeeper”; and

iv. Teaming: whether he respected the Board’s governance role versus Management’s role and contributed as a team
member without compromising his responsibilities as an Independent Director.

Having considered the assessment made by the other Directors on the independence status of Messrs Cheng Hong Kok
and Tan Lye Huat and other relevant factors as further elaborated below, the Board is of the view that Mr Cheng and Mr Tan
continue to be regarded as independent. In the discharge of their duties, Mr Cheng and Mr Tan have demonstrated the ability
and preparedness to exercise their independent business judgement and/or decisions on matters with a view to the best
interest of the Company without undue reliance, influence or consideration of the Group/Company’s interested parties such
as the CEO, other Non-Independent Directors, controlling shareholders and/or their associates and the Group/Company’s
Management.

The Board is of further view that an individual’s independence cannot be determined arbitrarily on the basis of a set period
of time.

Guideline 2.5

Board Composition and Size

The NC conducted its annual review on the size and composition of the Board which comprises members from different
backgrounds and whose core competencies, qualifications, skills and experiences are extensive.

Taking into account the scope and nature of the operations of the Group, the NC considered the current Board composition
and size to be appropriate, and collectively, the Directors provide relevant competencies to facilitate effective decision making
for the existing needs and demands of the Group’s businesses. The Board’s decision-making process is not dominated by
any individual or group of individuals.
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A summary of the composition of the Board and its committees is set out below:

Audit and Risk Nominating Remuneration

No. Name Status Board Committee Committee Committee

1. Peter Sung NED, ID C - - M

2. Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu) ED, NID M - - -

3. Cheng Hong Kok NED, ID M C M

4. Chong Chou Yuen NED, NID M M - -

5, William Nursalim alias William Liem NED, NID M - -

6. Tan Lye Huat NED, ID M M C
Legend:
C: Chairman ED: Executive Director ID: Independent Director
M: Member NED: Non-Executive Director NID: Non-Independent Director
Guideline 2.6

Board Diversity and Competency of the Board

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity on the Board and views diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. The current
composition of the Board provides diversity in terms of skills, experience and knowledge of the Company.

In identifying suitable candidates for new appointment to the Board, the NC will ensure that female candidates are included
for consideration. Having said that, gender is but one aspect of diversity and new directors will continue to be selected based
on merit, taking into account the contributions the candidates can bring to the Board, as part of the process for new Board
appointment and Board succession planning.

The NC conducted its annual review of the Directors’ mix of skills and experiences that the Board requires to function
competently and efficiently, based on a Board of Directors Competency Matrix providing information on the Directors’
respective areas of specialisation and expertise.

The NC, having reviewed the Board of Directors Competency Matrix and taking into account the Directors’ respective areas
of specialisation and expertise, is satisfied that members of the Board possess the relevant core competencies in areas such
as accounting and finance, strategic planning, business and management experience. In particular, the Executive Director
possesses good industry knowledge while the Non-Executive Directors, who are mostly professionals and experts in their own
fields, are able to take a broader view of the Group’s activities, contribute their valuable experiences and provide independent
judgement during Board deliberations.

Details of the Directors’ qualifications, background and working experience, principal commitments and shareholdings in
related corporations are set out under “Directors’ Profile” section of this Annual Report.

Guideline 2.7

Role of Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors constructively challenged and helped develop both the Group’s short-term and long-term business
strategies. Management’s progress in implementing such agreed business strategies was monitored by the Non-Executive
Directors. As Non-Executive Directors constitute a majority of the Board, objectivity on such deliberations is assured.

Guideline 2.8

Regular Meetings of Non-Executive Directors

During FY2017, Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) met amongst themselves quarterly and on an ad hoc
basis, communicated with the CEO and his management team to approve and/or discuss specific issues or matters relating
to the Group. The Company also benefited from Management’s ready access to its Directors for guidance and exchange of
views both within and outside the formal environment of the Board and Board committees meetings.
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At least once a year, Non-Executive Directors meet to discuss, inter alia, Management’s performance without the presence
of Management. The Board is hence of the view that it is not necessary to pre-arrange formal sessions.

Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Guideline 3.1

Separation of the Role of Chairman and CEO

The Company has different individuals assuming the Non-Executive Chairman and CEO functions so as to ensure effective
supervision and maintenance of an appropriate balance of power and authority.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman, Mr Peter Sung and the CEO, Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu), is
also clearly established in the Terms of Reference of the Board. The Chairman manages the business of the Board whilst the
CEO and his management team translate the Board’s decisions into executive action. The CEO has executive responsibilities
for the Group’s businesses and is accountable to the Board.

There is no familial relationship between the Chairman, Mr Peter Sung and the CEO, Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu).

Guideline 3.2

Roles and Responsibilities of Chairman

The Chairman, Mr Peter Sung, brings with him a wealth of experience and leads the Board to ensure its effectiveness on all
aspects of its role. Prior to each Board meeting, the Chairman, in consultation with Management and the Company Secretary,
sets the agenda for the meeting and ensures that Board members are provided with adequate and timely information. As a
general rule, meeting papers are sent to Directors at least one week in advance in order for the Directors to be adequately
prepared for the meeting. The Chairman leads the meetings and ensures full discussion of each agendum. He also ensures
that Board members are able to engage Management in constructive debate on various matters including strategic issues.
Members of the management team who have prepared the meeting papers, or who can provide additional insights into the
matters to be discussed are invited to present their papers during the meetings.

At Annual General Meetings (“AGMs”) and other shareholder meetings, the Chairman plays a pivotal role in fostering
constructive dialogue between shareholders, the Board and Management.

Guideline 3.3

Lead Independent Director

In view of the fact that Mr Peter Sung, the Chairman of the Company is now an Independent Director and the offices of the
Non-Executive Chairman and the CEO are held by different individuals, the Board is of the view that there is no need to have
a Lead Independent Director. Accordingly, Mr Cheng Hong Kok’s role as the Lead Independent Director of the Company
ceased on 25 January 2018.

Guideline 3.4

Lead Independent Director to lead in periodical meetings amongst themselves

As part of the Group’s continuous efforts to upkeep its corporate governance practice, the Company’s Independent Directors
continue to set aside time to meet without the presence of other Directors at least once a year. In addition, Independent
Directors will also meet regularly and on ad hoc basis with the CEO and his management team as well as other Non-Executive
Directors to discuss challenges facing the Group.
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Principle 4: Board Membership

Guideline 4.1
NC Membership and Key Terms of Reference
The NC consists of the following three members with the majority, including the Chairman, being independent:

° Mr Cheng Hong Kok, Chairman (Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr Tan Lye Huat (Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem (Non-Independent and Non-Executive)

The NC is guided by its written Terms of Reference which stipulates its principal roles as follows:
i nomination of new Directors to the Board and re-election of Directors at regular intervals, having regard to provisions
in the Constitution of the Company and the Code;

ii. review annually whether or not a Director is independent, having regard to the guidelines of the Code and other factors
that the NC considers salient;

iii. determine a suitable size of the Board which facilitates effective decision-making, after taking into consideration the
scope and nature of the operations of the Company;

iv. review the appointment and termination/dismissal of the following persons in the Company:
(a) the CEO and Company Secretary for recommendation to the Board for approval; and

(b) the personnel occupying key positions such as Chief Financial Officer and any position that carries the rank
of senior department head, senior vice president, general manager or its equivalent or in each case, would be
classified as one of the top five executives of the Company;

V. recommend to the Board on appropriate internal guidelines to address the competing time commitments that are
faced by Directors serving on multiple boards and review the Directors’ disclosure on their list of directorships;

Vi. review the Directors’ mix of skills, qualities and experiences that the Board requires to function competently and
efficiently annually;

vii. develop and maintain, as appropriate, a formal assessment process to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and the contribution by each Director to the effectiveness of the Board, as appropriate;

viii. to review rigorously, as appropriate, the independence of any Director who has served on the Board beyond nine
years from the date of his first appointment; and

iX. have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its Terms of Reference, full access to and co-operation by
Management; full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer to attend its meeting; and have reasonable
resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly.

Guideline 4.2

Responsibilities of NC

In discharging its key responsibilities, the NC reviewed the following in FY2017:

i the independence of Directors, particularly those who have served more than nine years;
ii. the size of the Board and its composition;

iii. the commitment of Directors serving on multiple boards;

iv. the performance of the Board as a whole;

V. contribution by each individual director to the effectiveness of the Board;
Vi. the Directors’ continued training and professional development;

Vii. the disclosure of Board matters in the Annual Report; and

viii. Board succession and renewal plans.
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The NC also ensures compliance with the provisions of the Constitution of the Company which stipulates that at each AGM,
one-third of the Directors, including the CEO who is also the sole Executive Director (or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, the number nearest to one-third), shall retire from office by rotation at least once every three years in accordance
with the Constitution, and may stand for re-election. The NC having reviewed, has recommended to the Board which has
agreed for the following Directors to retire by rotation and seek re-election at the Company’s forthcoming AGM:

i Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu)

ii. Mr Chong Chou Yuen

Subject to their re-election, Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu) shall continue to serve as the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company whilst Mr Chong Chou Yuen shall continue to serve as a member of the ARC.

Guideline 4.3

Continuous Review of Directors’ Independence

Each Director of the Company will annually confirm his independence (or otherwise) based on a checklist. The checklist is
drawn up based on the guidelines provided in the Code. The NC has reviewed the independence of the Directors as mentioned
under Guidelines 2.3 and 2.4 above, based on, inter alia, their declarations as aforesaid. The NC is also committed to reassess
the independence of each individual Director as and when warranted.

Guideline 4.4

Commitments of Directors sitting on multiple boards

In assisting the NC to determine whether Directors who sit on multiple boards have committed adequate time to discharge
their responsibilities towards the Company’s affairs, internal guidelines have been established to address the competing time
commitments faced by Directors serving on multiple boards. In this respect, the Company’s current policy stipulates that
if a Director is an Executive Director or a key management personnel of another listed company or a major corporation, he
should not hold more than four other directorships on unrelated listed companies and/or major corporations. For FY2017, no
Director has exceeded this stipulation.

The NC has reviewed each Director’s outside directorships as well as each Director’s attendance and contributions to the
Board. Despite the multiple directorships of some Directors, the NC is satisfied that all the Directors have discharged their
duties adequately for FY2017.

Guideline 4.5
Appointment of Alternate Directors
During FY2017, the Company had no alternate director on its Board.

Guideline 4.6

Nomination and Selection of Directors

The NC is responsible for recommending identified candidates to the Board to fill vacancies arising from resignation, retirement
or any other reasons or if there is a need to appoint additional directors with the required skill or knowledge to the Board in
order to fill the competency gap in the Board as identified by the NC. The potential candidate may be proposed by existing
Directors, substantial shareholders, Management or through third party referrals.

The Company has established the following process for the selection and appointment of new Directors:

i the NC determines a suitable size of the Board; and evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of
members of the Board required to add value and facilitate effective decision-making, after taking into consideration
the scope and nature of the operations of the Group.

ii. the NC considers the various sources of seeking suitable candidates either through internal promotion; or
recommendations from Directors/substantial shareholders/Management; or external sources such as search
consultants.

iii. short-listed candidates will be required to furnish their curriculum vitae stating in detail their qualification, working
experience, employment history, and to complete certain prescribed forms to enable the NC to assess the candidate’s
independence status and compliance with the Company’s established internal guidelines.
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iv. the NC evaluates the candidates’ capabilities by taking into consideration diversity of skills, experience, background,
gender, age, ethnicity and other relevant factors and how the candidates fit into the overall desired competency matrix
of the Board.

V. the NC makes recommendation to the Board for approval. The Board is to ensure that the selected candidate is aware
of the expectations and the level of commitment required.

For FY2017, no new Director was appointed to the Board.

Guideline 4.7

Key Information on Directors

Key information of each member of the Board including directorships and chairmanships both present and those held over
the preceding three years in other listed companies, other principal commitments, academic/professional qualifications,
membership/chairmanship in the Company’s Board committees, date of first appointment and last re-election and other
information, are furnished under the “Directors’ Profile” section of this Annual Report. Similar information is also published
on the Company’s website.

Principle 5: Board Performance

Guideline 5.1

Board Evaluation Process

The Company has implemented a formal process to evaluate (i) the performance of the Board and its Board committees,
(ii) the contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board, and (iii) the ability of the Board to discharge
its responsibilities in providing stewardship, corporate governance and oversight of Management’s performance.

The evaluation of individual Directors is differentiated between Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. The Executive
Director is evaluated by Non-Executive Directors, inter alia, through assessment of his performance against certain key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) set by the relevant Board committees in the early part of the year. Should there be issues
with any Director, the NC Chairman and the Chairman of the Board will conduct a peer review pro-actively in a timely manner
and will not wait until the results of such assessment exercise at year end.

In FY2017, the Board did not engage an independent external consultant to facilitate the annual review of the performance
of the Board and the Board committees.

For FY2017, all Directors were requested to complete a Board Performance Checklist which assesses the effectiveness of
the Board and the Chairman of the Board. In addition, each Director was also requested to complete a Board Committees
Performance checklist which assesses the performance of the respective Board committees. The Board Performance Checklist
included assessment criteria such as the size of the Board, the degree of independence of the Board, information flow from
Management and adequacy of the Board and committees’ meetings held to enable proper consideration of issues. In the self-
assessment of individual Directors, a Board of Directors Competency Matrix has been used to assess Directors’ respective
areas of specialisation and expertise, and other factors as provided under the guidelines of the Code. The Board would act
on the results where appropriate.

During the evaluation process, the NC also assessed each Director’s contribution, his ability to devote sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s affairs as well as his participation in discussions at meetings.

To ensure confidentiality, the evaluation returns completed by all Directors were submitted to the Company Secretary for
collation. The results of the performance evaluation were presented first to the NC for review and discussion and then to the
Board. The Board was satisfied with the results of the assessment for FY2017.
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Guideline 5.2
Board Performance Criteria
Each financial year, the NC undertakes a process to assess the effectiveness of the Board and its Board Committees.

The NC has established objective criteria to evaluate the Board’s performance which includes benchmarking of the Company’s
share price performance over a five-year period vis-a-vis the relevant indices and industry peers. Other performance criteria
employed to assess the Board’s performance are financial indicators such as Return on Assets and Return on Equity of the
Group over a five-year period. More relevant and meaningful criteria would also be used when applicable.

For FY2017, the NC duly observed the aforesaid process and criteria and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Guideline 5.3

Individual Director Evaluation

The evaluation of individual Director’s performance is performed on an annual basis which includes a Board of Directors
Competency Matrix to assess the Directors’ respective areas of specialisation and expertise, and general consideration of
such other factors as mentioned below.

For FY2017, the NC took note of each individual Director’s attendance at meetings of the Board, Board committees as well
as at general meeting; participation in discussions at meetings; knowledge of and contacts in the regions where the Group
operates; the individual Director’s functional expertise and his commitment of time to the Company.

The results of the performance evaluation exercise are used as a reference by the Chairman to review, where appropriate,
the composition of the Board and its Board committees, and in consultation with the NC, to support its proposals for Board
renewal so as to improve the effectiveness of the Board’s oversight of the Company. Comments received from the NC are
compiled and presented to the Board in due course.

Principle 6: Access to Information

Guideline 6.1

Complete, Adequate and Timely Information

To enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities, it obtains information it deems adequate and complete, in a timely manner from
Management so as to make informed decisions. A system of communication between Management and the Board and Board
committees has been established and improved over time. All scheduled Board and Board committees’ meetings are planned
twelve months ahead and all meeting papers are distributed to the Directors at least one week in advance of the meetings.

The Board, its committees and every Director have separate and independent access to Management and are free to request
for additional information as needed to make informed decisions.

Guideline 6.2

Provision of Information to the Board

In addition to the annual budget and business plans submitted to the Board for approval, the Board was provided with monthly
management/operations reports, management accounts, Board papers and related materials informing the Directors of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects. Management also kept the Board apprised of material variances between the
actual results, corresponding period of last year and the budget, with appropriate explanation on such variances. Further,
additional information was circulated to the Board on a regular basis as and when there was material development in the
Group’s business operations.

In FY2017, members of ARC and the Board were also briefed by Management on the application of the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)”), the implications of all the transition requirements in SFRS(l) 1 First-time
Adoption of Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International), and the Group’s process of preparing for the SFRS(l)
convergence in 2018. The SFRS(l) framework is to be adopted from 1 January 2018 with retroactive application, unless a
specific exemption or relief is provided in SFRS(I) 1.
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Guideline 6.3

Company Secretary

The role of the Company Secretary has been clearly defined which includes, inter alia, advising the Board on all matters
regarding the proper functioning of the Board, including compliance with the Company’s Constitution and applicable
regulations, including requirements of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (“Companies Act”), the Securities and Futures
Act and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Manual. She assists the Board in implementing
and strengthening corporate governance policies and procedures.

Under the direction of the Chairman, the Company Secretary ensures good information flow to and within the Board and its
committees and between Management and Non-Executive Directors.

Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary through electronic mail, telephone and face-to-face
meetings. During FY2017, the Company Secretary attended all meetings of the Board and its committees and the minutes
of such meetings were promptly circulated to all members of the Board and Board committees.

Guideline 6.4

Appointment and Removal of Company Secretary

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to the approval of the Board as stipulated in the
Company’s Terms of Reference of the Board. The last resignation and appointment of the Company Secretary was in November
2016. The incumbent appointment was with a unanimous consent from members of the Board.

Guideline 6.5

Independent Professional Advice

The Company allows for Directors, individually or as a group, to seek independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company, in the furtherance of their duties and after consultation with the Chairman of the Board.

1. REMUNERATION MATTERS

Matters concerning remuneration of the Board, senior executives and other employees who are related to the controlling
shareholders and/or the Directors (if any) are handled by the RC whose primary function is to develop formal and transparent
policies on remuneration matters in the Company.

Matters which are required to be disclosed in the annual remuneration report have been sufficiently disclosed in this Report
and in the notes to the financial statements of the Group.

Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Guideline 7.1
RC Composition
The RC comprises the following three Directors, all of whom are non-executive and independent:

° Mr Tan Lye Huat, Chairman (Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr Cheng Hong Kok (Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr Peter Sung (Independent and Non-Executive)

The RC is guided by its written Terms of Reference, which stipulates its principal roles as follows:
i offer an independent perspective in assisting the Board in the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on remuneration matters for the Directors and key management personnel of the Company;

ii. establish appropriate remuneration framework to motivate and retain Directors and executives, and ensure that the
Company is able to attract appropriate talent from the market in order to maximise value for shareholders;

iii. develop remuneration policy for the Executive Director and key management personnel (or executive of equivalent
rank), structuring it to link rewards to corporate and individual performance;
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iv. determine specific remuneration packages for the Executive Director and key management personnel (or executive of
equivalent rank) and any relative of a Director and/or substantial shareholder who is employed in a managerial position
by the Company;

V. review and approve the compensation of key management personnel;
Vi. review the appropriateness and transparency of remuneration matters for disclosure to shareholders; and
vii. have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its Terms of Reference including seeking expert advice within

and/or outside the Company.

Guideline 7.2

Remuneration Framework

To attract, retain and motivate Directors and employees, the RC establishes appropriate remuneration frameworks for the
Directors and key management personnel of the Company. Such frameworks are reviewed periodically to ensure that they
remain relevant.

Non-Executive Directors receive remuneration packages consisting of Directors’ fees and attendance fees which are based
on a scale of fees divided into basic retainer fees as Director, additional fees for serving on any of the Board committees and

attendance fees for participation in meetings of the Board and any of the Board committees.

The current framework for Non-Executive Directors’ fees (on per annum basis unless otherwise indicated) is as follows:

Role Member Chairman
Board of Directors $20,000 Additional $20,000
Audit and Risk Committee $7,000 Additional $5,000
Other Committees $4,000 Additional $4,000
Lead Independent Director $5,000 N/A
Attendance fees $1,000 per meeting

In determining the quantum of such fees, factors such as frequency of meetings, time spent, responsibilities of Non-Executive
Directors, and the need to be competitive in order to attract, motivate and retain these Directors are taken into account. The
Chairman and members of the ARC receive higher additional fees to take into account the nature of their responsibilities. No
member of the RC was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Guideline 7.3

RC’s access to advice on remuneration matters

The RC has direct access to the Company’s Head of Human Resources should they have any queries on human resources
matters.

During FY2017, the RC did not require the services of an external remuneration consultant. Nevertheless, the RC has explicit
authority to investigate any matter within its Terms of Reference and to seek external expert advice should such need arise,
at the Company’s expense.

Guideline 7.4

Service Contract

The Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of service contracts of its Executive Director and key management
personnel are contained in their respective employment letters. The RC was satisfied that such contracts of service provide
for fair and reasonable termination clauses applicable to the respective employment class and are not overly generous.
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Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

Guideline 8.1

Remuneration of Executive Director and Key Management Personnel

The Company’s remuneration structure for its Executive Director and key management personnel comprises both fixed
and variable components with an aim to attract, retain and motivate talent on a sustainable basis. The fixed compensation
comprises base salary and fixed allowances. The variable component, on the other hand, is a cash-based short-term incentive
that is performance related and is linked to the Company’s performance as well as the individual’s performance. This is
designed to align remuneration with the interests of shareholders and to link rewards to corporate and individual performance
so as to promote long-term success of the Group.

For the purpose of assessing the performance of the Executive Director and key management personnel, specific KPIs, with
both financial and non-financial targets, are clearly set out for each financial year and such KPIs comprise both quantitative
and qualitative factors. The RC believes that the KPIs enable the Company to monitor its success in achieving its strategy
and the progress of the Group in delivering high-quality growth.

Throughout FY2017, the Board has only one Executive Director, namely the CEO. As stipulated in the Company’s remuneration
framework, the Executive Director and key management personnel of the Group do not receive Directors’ fees from the
Company or from its subsidiaries/associated entities if they are nominated and appointed to these boards.

For FY2017, the RC is satisfied that the adjustments made to the salaries as well as the performance-related bonuses granted
to the Executive Director and key management personnel were reflective of the performance and the contribution made by
such staff taking into account the extent to which their KPIs were met.

Guideline 8.2

Long-term Incentive Scheme

Considering the size of the current business operations of the Group as well as its existing workforce, the Company does not
have any long-term incentive plan for the Executive Director and key management personnel.

Guideline 8.3

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic retainer fee for serving as Director, an additional fee for serving on Board committees
and an attendance fee for participation in meetings of the Board and any of the Board committees. In order not to compensate
the Non-Executive Directors excessively, the RC takes into consideration the factors such as frequency of the meetings, time
spent, responsibilities of Non-Executive Directors and the need to stay competitive with industry practices. The fee structure
for Non-Executive Directors is presented under Guideline 7.2 of this Report.

In light of the significant drop in the Group’s profitability level for FY2017, all Non-Executive Directors volunteered for a 5%
reduction in their basic retainer fees for FY2017. The RC and the Board collectively are of the view that the remuneration of
the Directors for FY2017 is appropriate and not excessive and would accordingly table it for shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM. The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors will abstain from voting in respect of this resolution.

Guideline 8.4

Contractual provisions to reclaim incentive components of remuneration

Having reviewed and considered the variable components of the Executive Director and key management personnel, which are
moderate, the RC is of the view that there is no requirement to institute contractual provisions in the terms of the employment
to reclaim incentive components of their remuneration paid in prior years.

Principle 9: Disclosure of Remuneration

Guideline 9.1

Remuneration Report

Details on the remuneration of Directors and key management personnel for FY2017 are presented below. During FY2017,
there was no termination, retirement and post-employment benefits granted to any of them.
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Guideline 9.2

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration of each Director paid or payable by the Company for FY2017 is set out below:

Directors’ Variable
Name of Directors Fees® Salary® Benefits® Bonus Total
Executive Director
Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu)™" - $532,200 $13,408 - $545,608
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Sung® $65,804 - - - $65,804
Cheng Hong Kok $59,000 - - - $59,000
Chong Chou Yuen® - - - - -
William Nursalim alias William Liem® - - - - -
Tan Lye Huat $49,000 — = = $49,000
Total Directors’ Remuneration $1Z::,/8004 $5$2,’,200 $1:(’,208 0:/0 $:L%;:2

Annotations:

(1) : As an Executive Director, Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu) does not receive Director’s fee.

(2) : Director’s fee to Non-Executive Chairman includes fee of $49,000 and benefits of $16,804 provided to him for reimbursement of transport and

car-related costs.

(8) : As full time employees of Tuan Sing Holdings Limited, the Company’s immediate holding company, both Mr Chong Chou Yuen and Mr William

Nursalim alias William Liem do not receive Directors’ fees.

(4) © The total sum of Directors’ fees of $173,804 is computed after applying a 5% voluntary Non-Executive Directors’ fees reduction on the basic

retainer fees. The total Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

(5) : Salary comprises basic salary and employer’s CPF contributions.

(6) : Benefits relate to car benefits and related costs.

Guideline 9.3

Remuneration of Top Five Key Management Personnel
The table below sets out the ranges of gross remuneration of the top five executives (excluding the Executive Director) of the

Group during FY2017:

Variable Remuneration

Name of Top 5 Executives Designation Salary" Benefits? Bonus® Bands of $250,000
Lee Hui Gek Chief Financial Officer 92% - 8% $250,000 - $499,999

General Manager, o o
Lee Kay Chen Jason Tyre Distribution Unit 93% 7% < $250,000
Christin Budiman® Senior Finance Manager 100% - - < $250,000
Phey Mui Noi Senior Finance Manager 92% - 8% < $250,000
Toh Bok Chuan Senior Manager, 95% 1% 4% < $250,000

Fleet and Operations

. . 94% 0% 6% 100%

Total Remuneration of Top 5 Executives $709,563 $700 $46,721 $756,084

Annotations:

(1) : Salary comprises basic salary, allowance and employer’s CPF contributions.

(2) : Benefits relate to long-term service awards.
(8) : Variable bonus includes employer’s CPF contributions.
(4)

Ms Christin Budiman resigned and left the Company on 2 October 2017.

The aggregate remuneration paid to the above executive personnel in FY2017 was $756,984.
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Guideline 9.4

Employee related to Directors or CEO

Save as disclosed above, there was no employee in the Group who is an immediate family member of a Director or the CEO,
whose remuneration exceeded $50,000 for FY2017.

Guideline 9.5

Employee Share Scheme

In view of the size of the existing business operations of the Group and its current workforce, the Company does not have
any employee share scheme nor any other long-term incentive scheme.

Guideline 9.6

Link between remuneration and performance

The information on the link between remuneration paid to the Executive Director and key management personnel, and
performance is set out under Guideline 8.1 of this Report.

1ll. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board recognises the importance of providing accurate and relevant information on a timely basis to all stakeholders.
In this respect, the ARC reviews all financial statements and results announcements and recommends them to the Board
for approval. In addition, the ARC ensures that the Company maintains a sound system of internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets as well as to manage potential risks.

During FY2017, quarterly unaudited results and the audited full-year results of the Group have all been announced within one
month after the end of each period.

Principle 10: Accountability

Guideline 10.1

Accountability for Accurate Information

In discharging its responsibility, the Board ensures that the Group’s financial results provide a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Announcements of quarterly and full-year financial results are
released to SGX-ST via SGXNet on the same evening of the ARC and Board meetings held to approve such announcements.

In addition, the Company has established a practice whereby business and finance heads of individual subsidiaries and
business units are required to provide quarterly written representation, in specific template, to the CEO and the Chief Financial
Officer (“CFO”) who would in turn furnish an overall representation to the ARC and the Board confirming, inter alia, that the
financial processes and controls, and the integrity of the Group’s financial statements are in place, highlighting material financial
risks and impacts and providing updates on significant financial issues of the Group.

In accordance with the requirements of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Board issued negative assurance statements in its
quarterly financial results announcements, confirming to the best of its knowledge that nothing had come to the attention of
the Board which might render the financial statements false or misleading in any material aspect.

Guideline 10.2

Compliance with Legislative and Regulatory Requirements

During FY2017, the Board reviewed quarterly representation letters from Management to ensure compliance with all the
Group’s policies, operational practices and procedures, and relevant legislative and regulatory requirements.

The Company received signed undertakings from all its Directors and executive officers based on the revised form of
Appendix 7.7, pursuant to Listing Rule 720(1) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Guideline 10.3

Management Accounts

Management updated the Board on the Group’s business activities and financial performance through monthly operations
reports. Such reports compared the Group’s actual performance against the approved budget and results of the previous
financial year and where appropriate, against forecast. They also highlighted key business indicators and major issues that are
relevant to the Group’s performance from time to time in order for the Board to make balanced and informed assessments
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.
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Principle 11: Risk Management and Internal Controls

Guideline 11.1

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a sound system of risk management and internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets. During FY2017, the ARC assisted the Board to oversee Management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems and the ARC reported to the
Board on critical risk issues, material matters, findings and recommendations pertaining to risk management.

A summary of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems is appended below.

> Risk Management

The Group has established a Risk Management Framework to enhance its risk management capabilities. The key risks were
identified and classified under four categories, namely, Business and Strategic Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks
and Compliance Risk. Action plans were in place to mitigate these risks. In addition, the Group evaluates its risk exposure
by adopting a three-dimensional Risk Evaluation Model where risk types are assigned risk exposure ratings based on the
likelihood and consequences of each risk identified. The risk exposure rating determines the extent of risk exposure and the
corresponding risk treatment required.

The Group recognises risk management as a collective effort beginning with the individual subsidiaries and business units,
followed by the operating segments and ultimately, Management and the Board, working as a team. A self-assessment
process, conducted regularly by Management, was introduced to ensure that the Group’s risk management controls are
satisfactory.

More discussion of the Group’s risk management is presented in the “Risk Management Statement” section of this Annual
Report.

> Internal Controls

Minimum Acceptable Controls have been implemented to enhance the Group’s internal control function in areas such as
finance, operations, compliance and information technology. The internal control measures aim to ensure that the Group’s
assets are safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, and that financial information used within the business
and for publication is reliable.

The system of internal controls and risk management established by the Group provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the Group will not be adversely affected by any event that can be reasonably foreseen as it strives to achieve
its business objectives. However, the Board also notes that no system of internal controls and risk management can provide
absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgement in decision-making, human error, losses, fraud
or other irregularities.

Guideline 11.2

Adequacy and Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management system has been integrated throughout the Group and has become an essential part of its business
planning and monitoring process. On an annual basis, Management submitted to ARC and the Board the “Risks Management
Report” detailing the Group’s risk profile, evaluates results and counter-measures to mitigate or transfer identified potential
risks so as to assure that the process is operating effectively as planned.

The ARC also reviewed reports submitted by the internal auditors relating to the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including the adequacy of the Group’s financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls, and relevant
communications by the external auditors as part of their statutory audit.
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In January 2017, the Company implemented the following policies:

i Information Security Policy
This policy provides guidelines to employees on the proper use of the Company’s information systems and to ensure
that the confidentiality of proprietary information is protected. It also supports the Company’s business objectives of
ensuring that the security, integrity and availability of information technology systems are balanced against the need
for staff to access systems and services that are necessary for their job, within the limits imposed by this policy.

ii. Personal Data Protection Policy
This policy aims to ensure that employees are aware of the legal obligations of the Company under the Personal Data
Protection Act 2012, Singapore or similar legislation in countries which the Group operates so as to protect the security
and confidentiality of data of third parties it obtains during its operations.

iii. Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption Policy
This policy, which complements the existing Employee Code of Conduct, sets out guidelines to ensure that the
Company, its directors, officers, employees and agents conduct their activities in an honest and ethical manner as
well as to comply with the applicable anti-bribery or anti-corruption laws and regulatory requirements in the various
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

As part of the Group’s continuous efforts to ensure that its risk management and internal control systems are adequate
and effective, the Company is not only working towards strengthening the existing policies by conducting regular reviews to
ensure that they remain relevant but is also implementing new ones where necessary so as to meet challenges brought on
by a changing business environment.

Guideline 11.3

Board’s Comment on Adequacy and Effectiveness of Internal Controls

Based on the framework of risk management and internal controls established and maintained by the Company, the work
performed by the internal auditors, statutory audit undertaken by the external auditors, and the written representation from the
CEO and CFO providing assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and
that the financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s
operations and finances, the Board is of the view that the Group has a sound system of risk management and internal controls.

The Board, with the concurrence of the ARG, is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were effective and adequate as at 31 December 2017 to address the financial, operational, compliance and information
technology risks of the Group.

Guideline 11.4

Risk Committee

The responsibility of overseeing the Company’s risk management framework and policies is undertaken by the ARC with the
assistance of the internal auditors. Having considered the Company’s business and operations as well as its existing internal
control and risk management systems, the Board is of the view that a separate Risk Committee is not required for the time
being. In April 2015, the Audit Committee was renamed as Audit and Risk Committee.

Principle 12: Audit and Risk Committee

Guideline 12.1

ARC Composition

The ARC comprises the following three Directors, all of whom are non-executive and the majority, including the Chairman,
being independent:

° Mr Cheng Hong Kok, Chairman (Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr Chong Chou Yuen (Non-Independent and Non-Executive)
° Mr Tan Lye Huat (Independent and Non-Executive)
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Guideline 12.2

Expertise of ARC Members

The ARC members bring with them invaluable professional expertise in the accounting and financial management domains.
The Board, after considering the advice from the NC, believes that the ARC members are appropriately qualified to discharge
the ARC'’s responsibilities as defined under its written terms of reference which have been approved by the Board.

Guidelines 12.3 & 12.4
Roles, Responsibilities and Authority of ARC
The ARC is guided by its Terms of Reference which stipulate its principal roles as follows:

Vi.

vii.

viii.

assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for the Company’s financial reporting, management of financial risks and
monitoring of the internal control systems. Review the financial reporting process, the system of internal controls and
management of financial risks, the audit process, and the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws
and regulations and its own code of business conduct;

ensure that arrangements are in place for the independent investigation of possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters that may be raised and that appropriate follow up actions are taken;

review the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach and ensure that no unjustified restrictions or limitations
have been placed on the scope. Review the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors.
Approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors. Monitor and assess the independence of
the external auditors and their performance. Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the external
auditors are received and discussed in a timely manner. Ensure that Management responds to recommendations made
by the external auditors;

review the activities of the internal audit function and ensure that there are no unjustified restrictions or limitations.
Review the internal audit program with regard to the complementary roles of the internal and external audit functions.
Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the internal auditors are received and discussed in a
timely manner. Ensure that Management responds to recommendations made by the internal auditors;

ensure that adequate counter measures are in place to identify and mitigate any material business risks associated
with the Company and the Group. Review the adequacy of the Company and the Group’s internal financial controls,
operational, compliance and information technology controls, and risk management policies and systems established by
Management. Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Company and the Group’s internal controls is conducted
at least annually;

evaluate how Management is reviewing the principal business risks and assess the appropriateness of the mechanisms
in place to identify, prevent and minimise these business risks. Ensure that an appropriate system is established to
identify and report areas of potential business risk promptly in order for remedial actions to be taken. Assess at least
annually the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems. Recommend to the Board its findings
and proposed course of actions to be taken by Management to ensure controls are put in place to address these
risks. Management is responsible for the actions to be taken;

review the relevance and consistency of the accounting standards used by the Company and the Group, significant
financial reporting issues and judgements so as to ensure the integrity of the financial statements of the Company and
of the Group, and any announcements relating to the Company and the Group’s financial performance; and

review and recommend for Board approval IPTs, as specified under Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and/or
the procedures set out in the general mandate approved by shareholders.

Minutes of the ARC meetings are routinely tabled at Board meetings for information.

During FY2017, the ARC reviewed and if appropriate, approved all disclosable interested person transactions in accordance
with the Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person Transactions. Directors who are interested in the transaction had
recused themselves from the deliberation and approval process in both the ARC and the Board deliberation. On a quarterly
basis, the ARC also reviewed the financial results announcements of the Company and the Group before their submission
to the Board for approval.
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The ARC had reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan for FY2017 and had agreed with the auditor’s proposed significant
areas of focus and assumptions that impact the financial statements. In ARC’s review of the financial statements of the Group
for FY2017, it had discussed with Management the accounting principles that were applied and their judgement of items
that could affect the integrity of the financial statements and also considered the clarity of key disclosures in the financial
statements. The ARC also reviewed and addressed, amongst other matters, the following key audit matters as reported by
the external auditors for FY2017.

Key audit matters How these issues were addressed by the ARC

Recoverability of refundable trade deposit
Management assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any evidence that the refundable trade
deposit provided to a related party to secure coal allocations
is impaired.

The ARC challenged Management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the amount, taking into account the coal
allocation contractual arrangements and delivery status, and
the financial performance of the related party. The ARC was
satisfied with the accounting of the refundable deposit and
its disclosures as at the reporting date.

The Group’s aged trade receivables

There is a risk that the Group’s aged trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired may not be recoverable and
allowance for doubtful receivables may not be adequate or
reasonable.

The ARC reviewed Management’s recoverability assessment of
the Group’s aged trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired as at the reporting date, including the assessment of
any allowance to be made by the Group in respect of overdue
trade debts. The ARC also reviewed Management’s credit
evaluation process taking into account the credit and payment
profiles of trade debtors. After taking into consideration the
findings of the external auditors, the ARC was satisfied with the
accounting and disclosures in the financial statements of the
Group’s aged trade receivables.

Identification of related party transactions

The Group has significant transactions with its related parties
and there is a risk that the related parties may inadvertently
be omitted, and as such, the Group’s identification of the
related party and disclosure of its transactions may be
incomplete.

The ARC considered and evaluated the Group’s process in
the identification, approval and recording of related parties
and related party transactions, including that of interested
persons and interested person transactions. Based on the
independent annual reporting by the internal auditors and

the results of findings from the external auditors, the ARC
was satisfied that related party transactions and balances
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements by Management.

Management reported to and discussed with the ARC on changes to the accounting standards and accounting issues which
have a direct impact on the financial statements. Directors had also been invited to attend relevant seminars on changes to
accounting standards and issues by leading accounting firms.

Following the review, the ARC is satisfied that all the aforesaid matters have been properly dealt with and recommended the
Board to approve the financial statements. The Board has on 25 January 2018 approved the financial statements.

The ARC has explicit authority to investigate any matter including whistle-blowing within its Terms of Reference. All whistle-
blower complaints were reviewed by the ARC to ensure independent and thorough investigation and adequate follow-up. The
Company has maintained a whistle-blowing register to record all the whistle-blowing incidents. The contents including “nil”
returns in the register is reviewed by the ARC at its quarterly meetings.

The ARC has full access to, and has had the full co-operation of Management and staff. It also has full discretion to invite
any Director or any member of Management to attend its meetings.
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Guideline 12.5

External and Internal Auditors

During FY2017 and as in the past years, the Company’s external and internal auditors were invited to attend the ARC meetings
and make presentations as appropriate. They also met separately with the ARC without the presence of Management.

Guideline 12.6

Independence of External Auditors

During FY2017 and as in the past years, the ARC reviewed the “Professional Services Planning Memorandum” prepared by
Deloitte & Touche LLP (“Deloitte”), the external auditors, discussed about the their terms of engagement, materiality level of
their work, significant risks assessment, areas of audit focus, internal control plan and the internal auditors’ report and audit
quality indicators, before the commencement of their audit work.

In respect of the audit quality indicators, the ARC had reviewed, in particular, the following areas: audit hours planned,
experience of the team, adequacy of training received by the team, results of internal and third party’s inspection of their
work, compliance with independence requirement, quality control, staff oversight, and staff attrition rate.

After the review, the ARC is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors, their approach of the
audit work and their proposed audit fees.

The ARC had reviewed and concurred with the nature of non-audit work performed and fees charged by Deloitte and its
member firms. A breakdown of the fees paid or payable to Deloitte and its member firms are analysed in the table below:

FY2017 FY2016
Fees paid to External Auditors $’000 % of Total Fees $’°000 % of Total Fees
Total Audit Fees 105 68 104 75
Total Non-Audit Fees 50 32 35 25
Total Fees Paid 155 100 139 100

The increase of the non-audit fees in FY2017 was mainly due to the advisory and training services rendered by the external
auditors in respect of SFRS(I) convergence. The ARC had recommended and the Board had accepted proposing to
shareholders, the re-appointment of Deloitte as the external auditors for the Group in the ensuing year. In view of the aforesaid,
the Company has complied with SGX-ST Listing Rules 712 and 715 in relation to the Company’s appointment of auditing firms.

Guideline 12.7

Whistle-blowing Policy

To encourage proper work ethics and eradicate any internal improprieties, unethical acts, malpractices, fraudulent acts,
corruption and/or criminal activities in the Group, the Company has a Whistle-blowing Policy in place. The policy provides
mechanisms by which concerns about plausible improprieties in matters of financial reporting and others, may be raised. A
Whistle-blowing Committee (“WBC”) had been established for this purpose. In addition, a dedicated secured e-mail address
allows whistle-blowers to contact the WBC and the ARC Chairman directly.

The Company’s Whistle-blowing Policy allows not just employees but also external parties to raise concerns and offer
reassurance that they will be protected from reprisals or victimisation for whistle-blowing in good faith.

Assisted by the WBC, the ARC addresses issues/concerns raised and arranges for investigation and/or follow-up of appropriate
action. The ARC reports to the Board any issues/concerns received by it and the WBC at the ensuing Board meeting. Should
the ARC or WBC receive reports relating to serious offences and/or criminal activities in the Group, they and the Board have
access to the appropriate external advice where necessary. Where appropriate or required, a report shall be made to the
relevant governmental authorities for further investigation/action.
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The WBC consists of:

° CEQG;
° CFO; and
° the Company Secretary

The WBC is empowered to:

i look into all issues/concerns relating to the Group (except for those directed specifically to or affecting any member
of the WBC which are dealt with by the ARC);

ii. make the necessary reports and recommendations to the ARC or the Board for their review and further action, if
deemed required by them; and

iii. access the appropriate external advice where necessary and, where appropriate or required, report to the relevant
governmental authorities for further investigation/action.

The Group takes concerns with the integrity and honesty of its employees very seriously. A copy of the Whistle-blowing Policy
has been disseminated to all staff to encourage the report of any behaviour or action that anyone reasonably believes might
be suspicious, against any rules/regulations/accounting standards as well as internal policies. Whistle-blowers could also email
to the ARC Chairman directly and in confidence and his/her identity is protected from reprisals within the limits of the law.

The Company treats all information received confidentially and protects the identity and the interest of all whistle-blowers.
Anonymous reporting will also be attended to and anonymity honoured.

All newly recruited employees are briefed of the existence of the Policy and a reminder is sent to all employees annually in the
form of an Annual Declaration by the employees requiring them to disclose any instances of conflicts of interest or raising any
issues or concerns of possible irregularities of the Company or the Group’s affairs. A “nil” return is also required for the purpose.

It has also been a standard item in the agenda of the quarterly meeting of the ARC to review any entries in the register of
whistle-blowing incidents, and progress of investigation, if it remains outstanding.

The Whistle-blowing Policy is reviewed by the ARC once every two years to assess the effectiveness of the processes in place
and to ensure that the said policy is updated with any related changes in legal and regulatory requirements. The Whistle-
blowing Policy was reviewed by the ARC and approved by the Board in January 2018.

Guideline 12.8

Disclosure on ARC’s activities and measures taken by ARC to keep abreast of changes to Accounting Standards
The ARC met four times during FY2017. The CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, external and internal auditors were invited to
attend these meetings.

In addition to the activities undertaken to fulfil its responsibilities, the ARC is kept abreast by Management, external and internal
auditors on changes to accounting standards, stock exchange rules and other codes and regulations which could have an
impact on the Group’s business and financial statements.
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In FY2017, members of ARC and the Board were also briefed by Management on the application of the SFRS(l), the implications
of all the transition requirements in SFRS(I) 1 First-time Adoption of Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International),
and the Group’s process of preparing for the SFRS(l) convergence in 2018. The SFRS(I) framework is to be adopted from
1 January 2018 with retroactive application, unless a specific exemption or relief is provided in SFRS(l) 1. The ARC and the

Board were briefed of the result of the impact analysis, summarised below:

Standards

Financial Impact

Mandatory Adjustments

SFRS(I) 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
has specific requirements on how revenue should be
recognised and also introduces other new requirements
such as accounting for commissions paid to salesmen,
additional disclosures, and so on. The standard provides a
single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all
contracts with customers:

1. ldentify the contract

Identify performance obligations

Determine transaction price

Allocate transaction price

Recognise revenue when performance obligation is
satisfied.

o s DN

Management has performed a detailed analysis of the
requirements of the initial application of the new SFRS(I) 15
and anticipates that the adoption of SFRS(I) 15 will not have
a material impact on the financial statements of the Group
and the Company in the period of their initial adoption.
Management does not plan to early adopt the new
SFRS(l) 15.

SFRS(l) 16 - Leases requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months on the balance sheet.

Management is currently assessing the possible impact of
implementing SFRS(l) 16. It is currently impracticable to
disclose any further information on the known or reasonably
estimable impact to the Group’s financial statements in
the period of initial application as Management has yet to
complete its detailed assessment. Management does not
plan to early adopt the new SFRS(l) 16.

SFRS(l) 9 - Financial Instruments

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, SFRS(I)
9 requires an expected credit loss model. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Management has performed a detailed analysis of the
requirements of the initial application of the new SFRS(I) 9
in relation to the expected credit loss model. Management
anticipates that the adoption of SFRS(l) 9 will not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Group
and the Company in the period of their initial adoption.
Management does not plan to early adopt SFRS(I) 9.

Optional Adjustment

SFRS(l) - 1 First-time Adoption of Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International)/SFRS(l) 1-21 - The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Under SFRS(l) 1, it allows the cumulative translation reserve
to be reset to zero balance on 1 January 2017.

The Group has elected not to reset its cumulative translation
reserve to zero balance on initial adoption of SFRS(l) 1-21.

Guideline 12.9

Cooling-off Period for Partners or Directors of the Company’s Auditing Firm
During FY2017, no former partner or director of the Company’s existing auditing firm or its member firms was a member of
the ARC.
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Principle 13: Internal Audit

Guidelines 13.1 & 13.2

Internal Auditors and Compliance

The ARC’s responsibilities over the Group’s internal controls and risk management are complemented by the work of the
internal auditors (“IA”).

The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to PricewaterhouseCoopers Risk Services Pte. Ltd. (“PwC”). Upon
the recommendation by ARC, the Board has approved the re-engagement of PwC as IA of the Group. The IA has unrestricted
access to the ARC as well as the documents, records, properties and personnel of the Company and the Group, where
relevant to their work. The IA’s primary line of reporting is to the Chairman of the ARC.

Guidelines 13.3 & 13.4

Internal Audit Function

The Company’s internal audit function is independent of the external audit. The IA, PwC, is a corporate member of the Institute
of Internal Auditors Singapore, and staffed with professionals with relevant qualifications and experience. The Company’s
engagement with PwC stipulates that its work shall comply with the PricewaterhouseCoopers Global Internal Audit Services
Methodology which is aligned to the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing issued by the
Institute of Internal Auditors.

At the beginning of each financial year, an annual internal audit plan which entails the review of the selected functions or
business units of the Group is developed and agreed by the ARC. The audit plan has been devised in such a way that all the
major functions or business units would be internal-audited within an internal-audit cycle. Having reviewed the audit plan of
PwC, the ARC is satisfied that the Company’s internal audit function is adequately resourced to perform the work for the Group.

Guideline 13.5

Adequacy and Effectiveness of Internal Audit Function

The ARC assesses the adequacy of the internal audit function through the review of PwC’s audit plan and the quality of its
reports to ensure that internal audits are conducted effectively and that Management provides the necessary co-operation to
enable the IA to perform its function. The ARC also reviews the IA’s reports and remedial actions implemented by Management,
the ARC was satisfied that the internal audit functions were adequate and effective.

IV. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company believes in treating all shareholders fairly and equitably by recognising, protecting and facilitating the exercise
of shareholders’ rights. As such, it reviews and updates relevant arrangements regularly and embraces effective as well as
fair communication with its shareholders. It also encourages shareholders to raise questions and to participate in discussions
at general meetings.

Principle 14: Shareholder Rights

Guideline 14.1

Sufficient Information to Shareholders

The Company believes in providing sufficient and regular information to its shareholders. In this respect, the Board adopts a
comprehensive policy to provide clear, timely and fair disclosure of information about the Company’s business developments
and financial performance that could have a material impact on the price or value of its shares. Such channels include annual
reports, shareholder circulars, shareholders’ meetings and announcements through SGXNet and the Company’s website.

Guideline 14.2

Providing Opportunity for Shareholders to Participate and Vote at General Meetings

Shareholders are entitled to attend the general meetings and are given the opportunity to participate effectively in and vote
at the general meetings of the Company.

Shareholders are informed of general meetings through reports/circulars/letters sent to all shareholders in addition to notices
published in the newspapers, Company’s announcements via SGXNet and the Company’s website. General meetings are held
at venues within the central business district which are easily accessible by the shareholders. Resolutions tabled at general
meetings are passed through a process of voting by poll which procedures are clearly explained by the scrutineers at the
beginning of the voting in such general meetings.
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Guideline 14.3

Proxies for Nominee Companies

Pursuant to the provisions in the Company’s Constitution, shareholders who are not “relevant intermediaries” may appoint up
to two proxies during his/her absence, to attend, speak, vote on his/her behalf at general meetings. Shareholders who are
“relevant intermediaries” such as banks, capital market services licence holders which provide custodial services for securities
and the Central Provident Fund Board (“CPF”), are allowed to appoint more than two proxies. This is to facilitate indirect
shareholders including CPF investors to participate in general meetings. Such indirect shareholders where so appointed as
proxy, will have the same rights as direct shareholders to attend, speak and vote at general meetings.

In order to have a valid registration of proxy, an instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at such place or places
specified in the notice convening the general meetings at least 72 hours before the time appointed for the general meetings.

Principle 15: Communication with Shareholders

Guideline 15.1

Communication with Shareholders

In line with the continuous disclosure obligations under the requirements of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and requirements of
the Companies Act, the Board informs the shareholders promptly of all major developments that may have a material impact
on the Group.

The Board embraces openness and transparency in the conduct of the Company’s affairs, whilst safeguarding its commercial
interests. Although the Company does not have the investor relations policy, shareholders can still provide their enquiries,
concerns or feedbacks on the Company’s website. Material information on the Group is released to the public on a timely
and non-selective basis through the Company’s announcements via SGXNet as well as through its corporate website at
WWW.SPCOrp.com.sg.

Guideline 15.2

Disclosure of Information on a Timely Basis

The Company communicates with shareholders and the investment community through timely release of announcements
to the SGX-ST via SGXNet and the Company’s corporate website. Should an inadvertent disclosure be made to a selected
group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly as soon as is practicable. The Company’s website also allows
the public to have access to its past years’ announcements.

The planned date of release of quarterly financial results is disclosed twelve months ahead in the Annual Report of the
preceding year. Such information is set out under “Financial Calendar” which can be found on page 17 of this Annual Report.

For FY2017, quarterly results were announced within twenty-eight days of the succeeding month; and full-year audited results
(full set; inclusive of notes to accounts) were released on 25 January 2018. The Annual Report for FY2017 will be distributed
to shareholders twenty-eight days before the AGM scheduled to be held on 17 April 2018.

Guideline 15.3

Interaction with Shareholders

General meetings have been and are still the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. During these meetings,
shareholders are given the opportunity to engage the Board and Management on the Group’s business activities, financial
performance and other business-related matters. Simultaneously, the Company is also able to gather views or input and
address shareholders’ concerns at general meetings.

Guideline 15.4

Soliciting and Understanding Views of Shareholders

In order to have a better understanding of shareholders’ views, the Board actively encourages shareholders to participate
during the Company’s general meetings. The Board, CFO, external auditors together with our legal advisers are present
during the Company’s general meetings to attend to shareholders’ queries. Further, Management would meet analysts and
fund managers as appropriate.
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To enhance the process of soliciting input from shareholders and members of the investment community, a “Feedback
and Queries” template has been established on the Company’s website. The Company’s website also has an “Investor
Relations” link which gives contact details for shareholders to communicate with the Company. The Company also attends
to shareholders’ queries made via telephone.

Guideline 15.5

Dividend Policy

As the Company still has accumulated losses as at 31 December 2017 and its current priority is to achieve long-term growth
for the benefit of its shareholders, its profits shall therefore be retained for investment into the future. The Board would consider
establishing a dividend policy at the appropriate time.

Principle 16: Conduct of Shareholder Meetings

Guideline 16.1

Effective Shareholders’ Participation

To facilitate shareholders’ effective participation at general meetings, the Company holds its general meetings at venues within
the central business district which is convenient and accessible to shareholders.

Shareholders are also informed of these meetings twenty-eight days in advance through notices in its annual reports or
circulars. These notices are also released via SGXNet, published in the newspapers and posted on the Company’s website.

Provision has been made under Article 76 of the Constitution, allowing for shareholders to vote in absentia. Examples of
absentia voting are voting via mail, electronic mail or facsimile at the general meetings. However, such methods may only be
possible following careful study to ensure that the integrity of information and authentication of the identity of shareholders
through the web is not compromised. Therefore, at this point in time, the Company does not allow a shareholder to vote in
absentia at general meetings, except through the appointment of a proxy, attorney or in the case of a corporation, a corporate
representative, to cast their vote in their stead.

Guideline 16.2

Separate Resolutions at General Meetings

The Board ensures that separate resolutions are proposed for approval on each distinct issue at general meetings. There is
no bundling of the resolutions as they are not interdependent and linked to each other. Detailed explanatory notes on each
item of the agenda is also provided to the Notice of AGM in this Annual Report.

Guideline 16.3

Attendees at General Meetings

In the past years, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of each of the Board committees, CEO and CFO have all
attended all general meetings to address issues raised by shareholders. The Company’s external auditors and legal advisers
were also present to address any relevant queries from shareholders.

Guideline 16.4

Minutes of General Meetings

The minutes of general meetings, which include the proceedings at the general meetings, questions raised by shareholders
and answers given by the Board and Management and the voting result of each resolution will be prepared by the Company
and are available to shareholders upon written request.

Guideline 16.5
Voting By Poll at General Meetings
The Company conducted poll voting for all resolutions passed at its last AGM held on 6 April 2017.

An independent firm was appointed as the scrutineer to conduct the polling process at the last AGM. The results of the poll
voting on each resolution tabled at the last AGM, including the total number of votes cast for or against each resolution, were
also announced after the said meeting via SGXNet.
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V. OTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

The Company has in place internal codes of conduct and practices for its Board members and employees on securities
transactions while in possession of price-sensitive information and their conduct of business activities.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS - Listing Manual Rule 907

Interested Person Transactions (“IPTs”) are executed on fair terms and at arm’s length regardless of nature and size. Quarterly
report on IPTs entered into by the Group is submitted to the ARC for review and recommendation to the Board for approval.
Under the requirements of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, where any IPT requires shareholders’ approval, the interested person
will abstain from voting and the decision will be made by disinterested shareholders. When a potential conflict of interest
arises, the Director concerned neither take part in discussions nor exercise any influence over other members of the Board.

Shareholders have adopted an interested person transaction mandate in respect of IPTs of the Company. The interested
person transaction mandate defines the levels and procedures to obtain approval for such transactions. The Group maintains
a register of the Company’s IPTs in accordance with the reporting requirements stipulated by Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing
Manual. Disclosure of IPTs is presented in the “SGX-ST Listing Manual Requirements” section of this Annual Report.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES - Listing Manual Rule 1207(19)

The Company has a formal insider trading policy whereby all the Directors and employees of the Group are prohibited from
dealing in the securities of the Company and its listed holding company (collectively the “listed entities”) while in possession
of price-sensitive information as well as during the period commencing one month before the announcements of the listed
entities’ full-year results, and two weeks before the announcements of the first, second and third quarter financial results
till the day of such announcements. This policy discourages all the Directors and employees of the Group from dealing in
the listed entities’ securities for short-term considerations and reminds them of their obligations under insider trading laws.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND PRACTICES

The Company’s code of conduct and practices are detailed in the Group’s Human Resource Policies and Procedures which
is available to all staff and is presented to new employees during induction. The code entails policies such as prohibiting
employees from disclosing confidential information or knowledge obtained by him/her during his/her employment with the
Group, from accepting gifts from business associates and in circumstances where refusal were to be impracticable, relevant
details are to be reported, etc.

The Group recognises the importance of integrity and professionalism in the conduct of its business activities. Employees are
expected to embrace, practise and adopt these values while performing their duties and always to act in the best interest of
the Group and avoid situations that may create conflicts of interest. All employees are required to make an annual declaration
on involvement in any conflict of interest situation and compliance with the code of conduct.
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The Directors of the Company present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group and statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

In the opinion of the Directors:

(@) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in
equity of the Company as set out on pages 52 to 100 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2017, and the financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
when they fall due.

1 Directors
The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Mr Peter Sung (Chairman)

Mr Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu) (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Cheng Hong Kok

Mr Chong Chou Yuen

Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem

Mr Tan Lye Huat

2 Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by means of the Acquisition of Shares and Debentures
Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose object is to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

3 Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share capital and
debentures of the Company or of related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept
by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) except as

follows:

Names of Directors and companies in which interests are held:

Names of Directors and companies in Holdings registered in Holdings in which Director is
which interests are held name of Director deemed to have an interest
As at As at As at As at
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December
2017 2017 2017 2017

Holding Company
Tuan Sing Holdings Limited

Ordinary shares

Mr Tan Lye Huat - - - 500,000
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3 Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures (Continued)
Names of Directors and companies in Holdings registered in Holdings in which Director is
which interests are held name of Director deemed to have an interest
As at As at As at As at
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December
2017 2017 2017 2017

Holding Company
Tuan Sing Holdings Limited

$80 million 5-year 4.50% per annum
Notes due 2019 pursuant to the
$900,000,000 Multicurrency Medium
Term Note Programme

(“MTN Programme”)

Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem $500,000 $500,000 - -

$150 million 3-year 6% per annum
Notes due 2020 pursuant to the
MTN Programme

Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem - $500,000 - -
Mr Tan Lye Huat - - - $500,000

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned Directors’ interests between the end of the financial year and
21 January 2018.

4 Share Options

During the financial year, there were no options granted to take up unissued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group.

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group issued by virtue of
the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group under
option.

5 Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Company consists of three non-executive Directors, two of whom are independent
Directors. At the date of this statement, the members of the Audit and Risk Committee are:

Mr Cheng Hong Kok (Chairman) (Independent and Non-Executive)
Mr Chong Chou Yuen (Non-Independent and Non-Executive)
Mr Tan Lye Huat (Independent and Non-Executive)

The Audit and Risk Committee performed the functions specified in Section 201B(5) of the Act, the SGX-ST Listing
Manual and the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit and Risk Committee has met four times during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and had reviewed,
inter alia, the following, with the executive Director, external and internal auditors of the Company, where relevant:

(a) the audit plans of the internal and external auditors, the scope of the internal audit procedures and results of
the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the Group’s systems of internal accounting controls;
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5 Audit and Risk Committee (Continued)
(b) the Group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;
(c) the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company before their submission to the Directors of the Company and the external auditors’

report on those financial statements;

(d) the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements on the results and financial position of the Company and
the Group;

(e) the interested person transactions as specified under Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual Rules;

(f) the co-operation and assistance given by management to the Group’s external and internal auditors; and

(9) the re-appointment of the external and internal auditors of the Group.

The Audit and Risk Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of management and has been given
the resources required for it to discharge its functions properly. It also has full discretion to invite any Director and
executive officer to attend its meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit and

Risk Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee has recommended to the Directors the nomination of Deloitte & Touche LLP for
re-appointment as the external auditors of the Group at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

6 External Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors

Peter Sung
Chairman

Boediman Gozali (alias Tony Wu)
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

25 January 2018
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TO THE MEMBERS OF SP CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SP Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group and the statement of
changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 52 to 100.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS”) so as to give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the
changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”)
Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters How the audit matter was addressed in the audit

Recoverability of refundable trade deposit

Management assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any evidence that the refundable trade
deposit of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to $8,073,000) provided
to a related party to secure coal allocations is impaired.

Management monitors and takes into consideration the
following in their assessment on recoverability of the
refundable trade deposit:

e the related party’s past payment history to the Group;

e ongoing dealings with the related party;

e Jatest management accounts and/or audited financial
statements of the related party;

e management’s relationships and discussion with
management of the related party on their coal mine’s
operation; and

e revised terms as agreed in the latest coal allocation
agreement with the related party.

The Group’s disclosure of the above significant estimates is
provided in Note 3 to the financial statements, and further
information related to the refundable trade deposit is provided
in Note 8.

Our audit procedures focused on evaluating and challenging
the key estimates used by management in assessing
the recoverability of the refundable trade deposit. These
procedures include:

e obtaining an understanding of the key controls and
processes that management and the directors have in
place to assess the recoverability of the refundable trade
deposit and ensured that they have been adhered to;

e reviewing the agreements for the arrangement on the
refundable trade deposit, including the latest revised
agreement that has been signed subsequent to the year
end; and

e challenging management’'s assessment of the
recoverability of the amount as at the reporting date,
including the assessment by management on the related
party’s financial position and performance, and its
historical payment cycles.

We have also assessed and validated the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial
statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

The Group’s aged trade receivables

There is a risk that the Group’s aged trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired may not be recoverable and
allowance for doubtful receivables may not be adequate or
reasonable.

Management monitors and assesses the Group’s credit risk,
and where required, adjust the level of impairment allowance,
which requires management to make significant judgements
regarding the expected future financial condition and the
ability of future receipts from the debtors, especially where the
debts are aged or overdue for more than 3 months.

Inappropriate judgement and estimates made in the
impairment assessment would result in a significant impact
on the carrying amount of the trade receivables.

Disclosure on the above key estimates has been made in Note
3 to the financial statements, and further information related
to the aged trade receivables is provided in Note 9.

Identification of related party transactions

The Group is part of another listed group, and accordingly,
there are various related parties that need to be identified and
transactions with these related parties to be monitored. The
Group has significant transactions with its related parties and
there is a risk that the related parties may inadvertently be
omitted, and as such, the Group’s identification of the related
party and disclosure of its transactions may be incomplete.

The related party transactions have been disclosed in Note
25 to the financial statements.

How the audit matter was addressed in the audit

We have evaluated and challenged management’s assessment
of the recoverability of the Group’s aged trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired as at the reporting date,
including the assessment of any allowance to be made by the
Group in respect of overdue debts.

We enquired with management on the reasons for the delay
in payments on certain aged trade receivables and the
appropriateness of any allowance for doubtful debts to
be made, by considering amongst others, factors such
as subsequent cash receipts, past payment practices, the
ongoing business relationship with the debtors involved
or where relevant, repayment schedule as agreed with the
debtors.

We have also assessed and validated the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e We have assessed and evaluated the design and
implementation of the Group’s policies and procedures
in respect of the identification of related parties and
recording of related party transactions.

e We performed background checks on certain customers
and suppliers to evaluate the completeness of the related
parties identified by management.

e We obtained a list of related parties from management
and ensured all transactions and balances with those
entities have been appropriately disclosed in the financial
statements. We have independently requested and
obtained confirmation replies from these related parties
to confirm the balances at 31 December 2017, and
transactions for the year then ended.

e We also considered the completeness of the disclosure
of related party transactions through review of statutory
information, books and records and minutes, and
assessed the disclosures for accuracy against information
obtained in our audit.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Chairman’s Statement, CEO’s
Operations Review, Five-Year Financial Summary, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Statement, SGX-ST Listing Manual
Requirements, Risk Management Statement, Sustainability Report, Corporate Directory and General Information but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
and the Shareholding Statistics, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Shareholding Statistics, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and FRS, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SP CORPORATION LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions

of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr Yang Chi Chih.

Aveidte Y T WF

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

25 January 2018
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 DECEMBER 2017

Note Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$’°000 $’°000 $’000 $°000
Assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 5 172 375 161 184
Investments in subsidiaries 6 - - 30,343 18,413
Total non-current assets 172 375 30,504 18,597
Current assets
Inventories 7 - 759 - -
Trade and other receivables 8 44,039 51,901 6,701 19,262
Tax recoverable 11 118 110 69 69
Cash and bank balances 12 22,684 24,826 1,739 2,449
Total current assets 66,841 77,596 8,509 21,780
Total assets 67,013 77,971 39,013 40,377
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 13 58,366 58,366 58,366 58,366
Translation (account) reserve (997) 1,628 - -
Accumulated losses (6,563) (7,010) (20,486) (19,173)
Total equity 50,806 52,984 37,880 39,193
Non-current liability
Deferred tax 14 38 54 1 1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 16,150 24,567 1,113 1,092
Income tax payable 19 366 19 91
Total current liabilities 16,169 24,933 1,132 1,183
Total equity and liabilities 67,013 77,971 39,013 40,377

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note Group
2017 2016
$’000 $’000
Continuing Operations
Revenue 16 121,066 109,331
Cost of sales (118,732) (106,860)
Gross profit 2,334 2,471
Other operating income 17 181 622
Distribution costs (41) (70)
Administrative expenses (2,013) (1,665)
Other operating expenses 18 (361) -
Interest income 19 1,111 1,816
Interest expense 20 (1) 9)
Profit before tax 1,210 3,165
Income tax expense 21 (244) (638)
Profit for the financial year from continuing operations 966 2,527
Discontinued Operation
Loss for the financial year from discontinued operation 24 (519) (725)
Profit for the financial year 22 447 1,802
Profit attributable to Owners of the Company
— Continuing operations 966 2,527
— Discontinued operation (519) (725)
447 1,802
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income After Tax
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2,625) 818
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the Financial Year,
net of tax, attributable to Owners of the Company (2,625) 818
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the Financial Year
attributable to Owners of the Company (2,178) 2,620
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (cents)
— Continuing operations 23 2.75 7.20
— Continuing and discontinued operations 23 1.27 5.13

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Equity attributable to Owners of the Company

Translation
Share reserve Accumulated Total
capital (account) losses equity
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Group
At 1 January 2017 58,366 1,628 (7,010) 52,984
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the financial year
Profit for the financial year - - 447 447
Other comprehensive loss for the financial year - (2,625) - (2,625)
Total - (2,625) 447 (2,178)
At 31 December 2017 58,366 (997) (6,563) 50,806
At 1 January 2016 58,366 810 (8,812) 50,364
Total comprehensive income for the financial year
Profit for the financial year - - 1,802 1,802
Other comprehensive income for the financial year - 818 - 818
Total - 818 1,802 2,620
At 31 December 2016 58,366 1,628 (7,010) 52,984
Company
At 1 January 2017 58,366 - (19,173) 39,193
Loss for the financial year, representing total
comprehensive loss for the financial year - - (1,313) (1,313)
At 31 December 2017 58,366 - (20,486) 37,880
At 1 January 2016 58,366 - (20,349) 38,017
Profit for the financial year, representing total
comprehensive income for the financial year - - 1,176 1,176
At 31 December 2016 58,366 - (19,173) 39,193

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group
2017 2016
$’000 $’000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 418 2,252
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment 107 172
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - (1)
Gain on disposal of tyre distribution business (673) -
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 5 -
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 6 1
Inventories written off 31 -
Interest expense 1 9
Interest income (1,112) (1,835)
Fair value (gain) loss on forward contracts, unrealised (19) 327
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (1,236) 925
Inventories 722 154
Trade and other receivables 5,137 11,294
Restricted bank balances 833 750
Trade and other payables (5,868) (3,237)
Cash (used in) generated from operations (412) 9,886
Interest paid (1) 9)
Interest received 1,056 2,061
Income tax paid, net (320) (210)
Net cash from operating activities 323 11,728
Investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment - 1
Payments for acquisition of plant and equipment (70) (17)
Net cash used in investing activities (70) (16)
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 900
Repayment of borrowings - (900)
Net cash from financing activities - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 253 11,712
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year 22,146 9,569
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies (1,562) 865
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year (Note 12) 20,837 22,146

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2017

1 General

SP Corporation Limited (the “Company”) (Registration No. 195200115K) is domiciled and incorporated in Singapore
with its registered office at 9 Oxley Rise, #03-02 The Oxley, Singapore 238697 and principal place of business at
6 Shenton Way, OUE Downtown 1, #41-03, Singapore 068809. The Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”). The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

Th